AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE BRISTOL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL EMPLOYEES AND THE

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE BRISTOL LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2027

Table of Contents

PREA	MBLE	1
ARTIC	CLE I. RECOGNITION AND DEFINITIONS	1
1.01	Statement of Recognition	1
1.02	Bargaining Unit Defined	
1.03	Definitions	2
1.04	Computation of Time	4
ΔΡΤΙ	CLE II. NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE	Δ
2.01	Initiation of Negotiations	
2.02	Negotiation Representatives	
2.03	Meetings	
2.04	Authority	
2.05	Impasse Procedure	
2.06	Adoption	
2.07	Employee Relations Meetings	
2.08		
2.09	In Term Bargaining	6
ARTIC	CLE III. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
3.01	Definition	6
3.02	Step 1: Informal Procedure	6
3.03	Step 2	
3.04	Step 3	
3.05	Step 4	
3.06	Step 5: Arbitration	
3.07	Time Limits	
3.08	Expedition of Grievances	
3.09	Record Keeping	
3.10	Rights of Representation	
3.11	Attendance at Grievance Meetings	
3.12	Protected Activity	
3.13	Resolution After Agreement Expiration	9
3.14	Delivery of Grievances	9
ARTIO	CLE IV. BASE RIGHTS	9
4.01	BASE Payroll Deductions	
4.02	BASE Meetings	
4.03	Mail Service/Mailboxes	
4.04	Bulletin Boards	
4.05	Facilities/Equipment	
4.06	BASE Reports	
4.07	Membership Identification	
4.08	BASE Leave	

4.09	BASE Business on District Property	12
4.10	Public Address/Intercom Systems	12
4.11	Board Agenda/Minutes	12
4.12	Bargaining Unit Roster	12
4.13	Officer Leave	12
4.14	Seniority List	12
4.15	New Employee Personnel Information	13
ARTIC	CLE V. EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS	13
5.01	Work Day	13
5.02	Work Week	14
5.03	Work Year	14
5.04	Class Size	15
5.05	Planning Time	16
5.06	Elementary Music, Art, and Physical Education Employees	17
5.07	Copy Machine Services	17
5.08	Work Materials	17
5.09	Money Collection	18
5.10	Ohio Resident Educator Program	18
5.11	Employee Orientation and Training	18
5.12	Protection of Employee Property	19
5.13	Employee Rest Areas	
5.14	Telephone Use	
5.15	Employee Parking	
5.16	Employee Health and Safety	
5.17	Student Discipline	
5.18	Classroom Interruptions	
5.19	Grade Changes	
5.20	Special Needs Students	
5.21	Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC)	
5.22	Duties and Miscellaneous Rules	21
	CLE VI. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES	
6.01	Job Classification	
6.02	Job Descriptions	
6.03	Bargaining Unit Work	
6.04	Vacancies	
6.05	Transfers	
6.06	Standards Based Teacher Evaluation	
6.07	Classified Evaluation Schedule/Procedure	
6.08	Other Evaluations	
6.09	Assignments to More than One School	
6.10	Evaluation Notices	
6.11	Video Cameras	
6.12	Non-Renewal	
6.13	Employee Discipline	30

6.14	Official Personnel Files	31
6.15	Medical Examination	32
6.16	Criminal Record Check	32
6.17	Substitutes for Absentees	
6.18	Scheduling (Classified Employees)	33
6.19	Overtime Assignments	33
6.20	Assignments for Medical Reasons	34
6.21	Non-Discrimination	34
۸ D.T.I.	CLE VIII CLIDDI EMENTAL DAV DOCITIONO	2.4
	CLE VII – SUPPLEMENTAL PAY POSITIONS	
7.01	Posting and Filling Position	34
7.02	Supplemental Awarding Preference	
7.03	Non-Renewal of Supplemental Contract	
7.04	Payment for Supplemental Positions	
7.05	Summer School and Evening School Positions	
7.06	Buses/Field Trips	
7.07	Non-Paid Extra Duties	36
ARTI	CLE VIII. LEAVES, HOLIDAYS, AND VACATIONS	36
8.01	Sick Leave	
8.02	Parental Leave	
8.03	Personal Leave (Paid)	
8.04	Unpaid Leave	
8.05	Paid Holidays During Paid Leave	
8.06	Insurance Coverage During Unpaid Leave	
8.07	Self-Improvement Leave	
8.08	Jury Duty; Under Subpoena	
8.09	Military Leave	
8.10	Return From Leave	
8.11	Holidays	
8.12	Vacation	
8.13	Emergency School Closing	
8.14	Attendance Incentive	
-	Assault Leave	
8.16		
8.17	Family Medical Leave Act of 1993	
0.17	Talling Medical Ecave 7 of 61 1000	
ARTI	CLE IX. COMPENSATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS	
9.01	Classified Employee Pay Schedules	
9.02	Certificated Employee Pay Schedules	
9.03	Experience Credit	
9.04	Overtime Pay	
9.05	Expense Reimbursement	47
9.06	Paycheck Procedure	47
9.07	Insurance	49
9.08	Severance Pay	

9.09	Admission to School Events	56
9.10	Wage Garnishment	56
9.11	Faculty as Substitutes; Pay Rate and Pay Dates	56
9.12	Home Instruction, Evening School and Summer School	
9.13	Extended Time	
9.14	Medical Provider Alternative	57
9.15	Professional Development Reimbursement	57
9.16	College Credit Plus (CCP) Instruction	
ARTIO	CLE X. RETIREMENT	58
	STRS/SERS Pick-Up	
ΔΡΤΙ	CLE XI. REDUCTION IN FORCE	59
	Reasons	
	Notice to BASE	
	Attrition	
	Effective Date of Layoff	
	Layoff	
	Recall	
	Transfers When RIF Exists	
	Fringe Benefits During Layoff	
	Substituting During Layoff	
	Unemployment Compensation	
	Continuing Contract Precedence	
11.12	Classified Employees	62
ARTIO	CLE XII. DISTRICT CONSOLIDATION, JURISDICTIONAL CHANGES, AND	
,	MERGERS	62
ARTI(CLE XIII. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	64
	CLE XIV. EFFECTS AND DURATION OF AGREEMENT	
14.01	Severability	64
	Authority of Agreement	
	Individual Contracts	
	Printing and Distribution	
14.05	Duration	66
	NDIX A	
	NDIX B-1, 2, 3	
	NDIX C-1, 2, 3	
	NDIX D	
APPF	NDIX E Board Approved Plan Options	77

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the Bristol Association of School Employees, an affiliate of the Ohio Education Association, the National Education Association and the North Eastern Ohio Education Association (NEOEA), hereinafter referred to as "BASE," and the Board of Education of the Bristol Local School District, hereinafter referred to as the "Board," following extended and deliberate good faith negotiation, have reached certain understandings which the parties desire to confirm in this Agreement, it is hereby agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION AND DEFINITIONS

1.01 Statement of Recognition

The BASE shall be the sole and exclusive negotiating representative for the bargaining unit of employees defined in Section 1.02 below as employed or as hereafter employed by the Board.

1.02 Bargaining Unit Defined

The bargaining unit of employees represented by BASE shall be defined as follows:

INCLUSIONS: All full-time and part-time regularly employed professional (certificated) employees including but not limited to teachers, guidance counselors, librarians, and tutors. All full-time and part-time regularly employed non-professional (classified) employees including but not limited to custodians, maintenance workers, cooks, cafeteria workers, bus drivers, computer technology aide, sweeper-cleaners, secretaries and educational assistants.

EXCLUSIONS: All supervisory, management level and confidential employees, seasonal employees, casual employees who work fewer than sixty (60) consecutive work days in a bargaining unit position, and student employees, as defined in ORC 4117.01, including, but not limited to Superintendent of Schools, Superintendent's Secretary, Board Treasurer, Board Treasurer's Secretary, Acting Principal, Maintenance Supervisor, Cafeteria Supervisor, Administrative Assistant and Computer Technology Coordinator.

A casual employee shall be defined as a person employed on a substitute basis for fewer than sixty (60) consecutive workdays in the same bargaining unit position, provided that such service shall not be deemed to be interrupted by arbitrary action, sick days of the substitute, calamity days, workdays which are not pupil attendance days and on which the substitute is not requested to work, summer recess, nor by other similar interruptions other than the return of the regular employee from leave, and further provided that such days of absence shall not count toward the sixty (60) consecutive workdays. Any substitute

employee employed effective February 15 or later shall remain a casual employee for the remainder of that school year, regardless of the number of days worked, except that such substitute shall be covered by the provisions of Article VIII and IX of this Agreement after sixty (60) consecutive days of service as described above.

Such employees shall be considered part of the bargaining unit after sixty (60) consecutive workdays and shall be afforded all bargaining unit rights only in the fiscal year in which the sixty (60) consecutive days are achieved. No bargaining unit provisions shall be implied to successive years, unless it is officially known by the Superintendent that the position will continue to be vacant for a period to exceed sixty (60) consecutive workdays. When a position continues beyond the fiscal school year, the employee shall be a bargaining unit member only until the regular employee returns or sixty (60) consecutive workdays have been achieved in any other position.

1.03 Definitions

The terms listed below, when used in this Agreement, shall be defined as follows:

1.031 <u>Employee</u>

Any employee in the bargaining unit defined in Section 1.02 of this Agreement.

1.032 Day

A calendar day.

1.033 Workday

A day on which an employee is scheduled to report for work, excluding holidays, or a day on which the central administration office is closed. A workday is a day on which the central administration office is open for regular business. The central administration office is open for regular business Monday through Friday.

1.034 Immediate Supervisor

The Supervisor, Principal or person in a comparable administrative or supervisory position responsible directly for the supervision and direction of an employee and to whom the employee is directly responsible. An immediate supervisor shall not be a person who is a member of the bargaining unit represented by BASE.

1.035 <u>Superintendent</u>

The Superintendent of the Bristol Local School District or designated representative.

1.036 BASE

The Bristol Association of School Employees.

1.037 Board

The Board of Education of the Bristol Local School District.

1.038 <u>Seniority</u>

Seniority shall be defined as length of continuous service in a bargaining unit position. Seniority shall accrue for all time an employee is on active pay status or is receiving workers' compensation benefits. Time spent on inactive pay status shall not contribute to the accrual of seniority but shall not constitute a break in seniority. Unpaid FMLA shall not contribute to the accrual of seniority.

- A. Service rendered beyond the regular work year or beyond the regular work day will not be counted toward seniority.
- B. Seniority for employees who render service during the workday for fewer hours than the ordinary and normal maximum number of hours for such bargaining unit position or classification shall be determined as follows: The total number of hours worked during the regular work year shall be divided by the maximum number of hours worked per day ordinarily and normally in such bargaining unit position or classification, then divided by the number of days in the work year ordinarily and normally worked in such bargaining unit position or classification.
- C. If the seniority of two or more employees is equal, the additional criteria for determining seniority, in the following order, shall be:
 - 1. A full-time employee shall have preference in the event of a vacancy, transfer, new position, or R-I-F over a part-time employee with the same seniority.
 - 2. The earliest date of Board action on the most recent employment of the employees.
 - 3. The longest total service in any employment position(s) with the Board.

4. When two employees are hired on the same date by action of the Board in the same certification or classification, lots shall be drawn with a Base Representative present at the public session of the Board meeting when the action to hire is completed.

1.039 <u>Bargaining Unit Position</u>

A specific job held by an individual bargaining unit member.

1.04 Computation of Time

In computing any time period prescribed by or allowed by this Agreement, such period shall begin to run on the day following the day of the act, event, or occurrence. The last day of the period so computed is to be included, unless it is a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or a day or part of a day on which the central administration office is closed, in which event the period shall run until the end of the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or a day or part of a day on which the central administration office is closed.

ARTICLE II. NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

2.01 Initiation of Negotiations

A written request for negotiation may be submitted by BASE or the Superintendent to the State Employment Relations Board (SERB) with a copy delivered to the other party no earlier than ninety (90) days nor later than sixty (60) days before the date of expiration of this Agreement. The parties shall meet within ten (10) days of such request, at which time BASE will present its package to the Board, unless the parties agree mutually to meet at a later date. The Board will present its package at the next mutually agreed upon date. Both parties may make amendments to the packages at the meeting immediately following the second meeting or, if mutually agreed upon, at future meetings.

2.02 <u>Negotiation Representatives</u>

Neither party shall attempt to exert any control over the selection of the negotiation representatives of the other party.

2.03 Meetings

The parties shall meet in negotiation at times and places mutually acceptable to each party.

2.04 Authority

The negotiation representatives of each party shall be clothed with all necessary authority to make proposals, consider proposals, make counterproposals, and reach tentative agreement on all matters under negotiation subject only to final ratification by the Board and BASE.

2.05 Impasse Procedure

Impasse may be declared by either party after forty-five (45) days of negotiation. Upon declaration of impasse, request shall be made to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) to provide a mediator to assist the parties in reaching agreement. Mediation shall begin as soon as the mediator can be available to the parties and shall continue until the expiration of this Agreement and, if the parties mutually agree, may continue thereafter. The parties shall share equally any costs charged by FMCS. The parties may agree to continue to negotiate with or without the services of the mediator.

2.06 Adoption

Adoption of this Agreement shall be accomplished upon ratification by BASE and by the Board. Upon such ratification, two copies of the final agreement shall be signed within thirty (30) days of ratification by both party's representatives. One copy to be kept by BASE and one copy to be kept by the Board.

2.07 Employee Relations Meetings

Representatives of the Board and BASE shall meet monthly at a time convenient to both parties for the purpose of reviewing the administration of this Agreement and to resolve other problems that may arise. These meetings are not intended for the purpose of negotiation or to bypass the grievance procedure. Each party will submit to the other, no later than one day prior to the meeting, an agenda of the matters it wishes to discuss. The meeting may be postponed or cancelled by mutual agreement. (See 5.03)

2.08

No press releases or progress reports shall be issued by the parties to the public prior to impasse. Once impasse is declared pursuant to 2.05 Impasse Procedure, either party may release to the press or the public the status of negotiations, including each party's position on each issue at impasse.

2.09 In Term Bargaining

If it is necessary to enter into in term negotiations during the term of this contract as provided Article XIV – Effects of the Agreement or in ORC 4117, the Superintendent for the Board or the President of BASE shall submit such request to the other.

- 2.091 The request shall identify the issue(s) to be negotiated.
- 2.092 The party receiving the request shall respond on the willingness to reopen negotiations within fifteen (15) days.
- 2.093 Unless there is an emergency, the Superintendent will maintain the status quo from the date of the request (2.092 above). Otherwise, after the 15th workday, the Superintendent will temporarily implement the measures necessary to maintain operations.

ARTICLE III. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

3.01 Definition

A grievance is a claim by an employee or BASE that there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the terms of this Agreement. The parties shall attempt to resolve grievances at the lowest possible level where an authoritative decision can be rendered. Grievances shall be processed as set forth in this Article.

3.02 Step 1: Informal Procedure

An employee who believes that the basis exists for a grievance shall discuss the grievance with their immediate supervisor informally. Such discussion shall be identified by the employee/BASE that they are exercising their right to Step 1 of the grievance procedure.

3.03 Step 2

If the informal discussion in Step 1 does not affect a satisfactory disposition of the grievance, BASE may submit the grievance in writing to the immediate supervisor, on the Grievance Form found in Appendix A. Such submission shall occur no later than twenty (20) workdays after the date on which the grievant reasonably would have known of the act, event, or occurrence giving rise to the grievance. The immediate supervisor shall arrange for a meeting with BASE to take place within five (5) workdays after receipt of the grievance. The immediate supervisor shall provide the BASE grievance chairperson with a written disposition of the grievance within five (5) workdays after the conclusion of the meeting.

3.04 Step 3

If the disposition of the grievance by the immediate supervisor is not acceptable, or if the disposition is not provided within the time limits, BASE may submit the grievance to the Superintendent within five (5) workdays after the receipt of the disposition of the immediate supervisor or the expiration of the time limit for such disposition. The Superintendent shall arrange for a meeting with BASE to take place within five (5) workdays of receipt of the grievance. The Superintendent shall provide a written disposition of the grievance to the BASE grievance chairperson within five (5) workdays of the meeting.

3.05 Step 4

If the disposition of the grievance by the Superintendent is not acceptable, or if the disposition is not provided within the time limit, BASE may submit the grievance to the Board by giving written notice to the Board President. The Board shall arrange for a meeting with BASE to take place at the next regular meeting of the Board after receipt of the grievance by the Board President but no later than twenty (20) workdays after such receipt. At the option of BASE or the Board, this Step 4 may be waived and the grievance submitted instead to arbitration in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Article. Upon conclusion of the meeting, the Board shall have five (5) workdays in which to provide its written disposition of the grievance to the BASE grievance chairperson.

3.06 Step 5: Arbitration

If the disposition of the grievance is not acceptable, or if the Board has not issued its written disposition within the time limit, or if BASE has waived Step 4, BASE may submit the grievance to arbitration by giving written notice to the Superintendent of its intent to do so. BASE will determine which grievances proceed to arbitration. Such notice of intent shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) workdays after receipt of the Board disposition of the grievance, the expiration of the time limit therefor, or receipt of the Superintendent's disposition when Step 4 has been waived. The parties shall first attempt to agree upon an arbitrator to hear the grievance. If the parties are unable to agree within five (5) workdays from the date of the Superintendent's receipt of the notice of intent to submit the grievance to arbitration, BASE shall then request the American Arbitration Association to administer the proceedings under the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of that Association. The BASE grievance committee shall determine which grievances proceed to arbitration.

3.061 <u>Decision of Arbitrator</u>

The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to, subtract from,

change or alter any of the terms of this Agreement nor add to, detract from, or modify the language of the Agreement in arriving at their decision. The arbitrator shall confine the decision to the issue(s) submitted for arbitration and shall have no authority to decide any other issue(s) not so submitted.

3.062 Costs of Arbitration

Each party shall bear the full cost for its representation in the arbitration proceedings. The costs and expenses of the arbitrator and the American Arbitration Association shall be paid by the losing party.

3.063 Transcripts

Should either party desire a transcript of the arbitration proceedings, then the costs for the transcripts shall be divided equally between the parties.

3.07 Time Limits

The time limits set forth in this procedure may be extended only by mutual agreement of the parties. The parties agree that every reasonable effort will be made to expedite the grievance process. A grievance that is not timely filed or appealed to the next step shall be deemed waived.

3.08 Expedition of Grievances

A grievance may be submitted initially at Step 3 in a case where the grievance involves more than one immediate supervisor; where the immediate supervisor is without authority to grant the relief sought, provided the Superintendent may remand the grievance if the immediate supervisor does hold such authority; or where the grievance arises from the action or inaction of an administrator above the level of immediate supervisor.

3.09 Record Keeping

All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel file of any employee involved.

3.10 Rights of Representation

The grievant has the right to Union representation at all meetings and hearings involving the grievance.

The Union has the exclusive right to file grievances and be present for the adjustment of any and all grievances.

The Union shall have the exclusive right to determine whether to proceed to the arbitration step of the procedure.

The Union shall designate a representative to receive copies of all communications in the processing of grievances.

3.11 Attendance at Grievance Meetings

An employee whose presence is required at any grievance meeting described in this Article shall be made available for such meeting without loss of pay or leave. Whenever illness or other incapacity of either party or its representatives prevents attendance at a grievance meeting, the time limit shall be extended to such time that such person(s) can be present.

3.12 Protected Activity

An employee who participates or intends to participate in any grievance as described herein shall not be subjected to discipline, reprimand, warning, or reprisal because of such participation or intention.

3.13 Resolution After Agreement Expiration

Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any claim or grievance arising thereunder before the expiration may be processed through the grievance procedure until resolution.

3.14 Delivery of Grievances

Forwarding of written grievances, notice of hearings, or disposition of grievances may be mailed or hand-delivered. It shall be the responsibility of the appropriate BASE representative or the responsible administrator to assure delivery of written notice within the specified time period.

ARTICLE IV. BASE RIGHTS

4.01 BASE Payroll Deductions

Payroll deduction of annual dues, fair share fees, assessments, and contributions shall be provided to BASE by the Board without cost in accordance with the following procedure.

4.011 Authorization/Deduction Schedule

Upon written assignment authorization of the employee on forms provided by BASE, the Board shall make the authorized annual deduction in equal prorated amounts from the first paycheck in October or with the next paycheck received after such authorization, whichever is later, and continuing through the last paycheck in May.

4.012 Continuing Deduction

Such authorization shall continue in effect from year to year unless revoked by the employee between September 1 and September 30 of any year on a form provided by BASE. A copy of such revocation shall be provided simultaneously both to the Board and to BASE.

4.013 Balance Due Deduction

The balance of the annual deduction shall be collected by the union.

4.014 Remittance of Deductions

The deductions shall be remitted to BASE on each pay date via an electronic funds transfer (EFT) into the BASE bank account.

4.015 Remittance Report

The deduction remittance shall be accompanied by a report showing the employee's name and amount of deduction.

4.016 Notice of Change in Amount

BASE shall give written notice to the Board Treasurer of any change in the amount of deduction at least twenty (20) days before such change is to be effective.

4.02 BASE Meetings

BASE shall be allowed to hold meetings on District property, provided that advance notification has been provided to the building principal by submitting a building use form, and BASE use of the building does not interfere with any previously scheduled utilization of the building. When special custodial services are needed, the Board may charge BASE according to Board policy.

4.03 Mail Service/Mailboxes

BASE shall be allowed use of the Board mail service, including employee mailboxes, for BASE communications to and from employees. BASE shall be provided a mailbox at the work location of the BASE President or designee.

4.04 Bulletin Boards

BASE shall be allowed to post notices and other information regarding BASE activities and concerns at each work site in the same locations as employee mailboxes in an adequate space designated for exclusive use by BASE.

4.05 <u>Facilities/Equipment</u>

BASE shall be allowed to use school facilities and equipment, including, but not limited to, FAX machine and other duplicating and photocopying machines, calculating, and computing machines, audio-visual equipment, and word/data processing equipment at all reasonable times when such items are not otherwise in school use. BASE shall provide or pay for any consumable material attendant to such use and shall limit such use to its function as bargaining representative.

4.06 BASE Reports

BASE shall be allowed, upon request by BASE representatives, to present brief reports and announcements at the conclusion of staff meetings.

4.07 Membership Identification

BASE members shall be allowed to wear and otherwise display pins or other identification of membership in BASE, provided that such display does not disrupt school operations.

4.08 BASE Leave

Upon written authorization to the Superintendent by the BASE President, an employee shall be granted leave with pay and without loss of other leave for the purpose of conducting BASE business. Such leave shall not exceed eight (8) workdays in the aggregate during any fiscal year; provided, in addition, that there shall be no restrictions on the use of personal leave, in accordance with Section 8.02 of the Agreement, for such purpose. Such request shall be granted upon written authorization to the Superintendent by the BASE President five (5) workdays before such leave is to commence, except in the case of an emergency.

4.09 BASE Business on District Property

Duly authorized representatives of BASE and its respective affiliates shall be permitted to transact official BASE business on District property at all reasonable times, provided that such activity shall not interfere with nor disrupt normal Board operations.

4.10 Public Address/Intercom Systems

Duly authorized BASE representatives shall be allowed to present brief announcements regarding official BASE business by use of any public address/intercom system available at each work location before or after the regular student day.

4.11 Board Agenda/Minutes

The BASE president shall be provided a copy of the full agenda for all regular board meetings at the same time they are provided to the members of the Board of Education. The minutes of each Board meeting shall be sent to the President of the Association no later than three (3) days after Board approval.

4.12 Bargaining Unit Roster

BASE shall be provided a current personnel directory by September 30 of each year. If any corrections/additions need to be made, BASE shall notify the Superintendent within 10 workdays from September 30. A corrected personnel directory shall be provided to BASE within 15 workdays of said notification to the Superintendent. Such personnel directory shall include the following information about each employee, listed alphabetically by the employee's name: work location, job assignment. The BASE President shall be advised in writing of changes in the personnel directory as the changes occur.

4.13 Officer Leave

Upon request of BASE, an employee elected to a state or national office of an affiliated professional organization will be granted an unpaid leave of absence in accordance with this Agreement to serve in such office.

4.14 Seniority List

A seniority list in accordance with Section 1.038 of this Agreement shall be prepared by the Board with ten (10) copies given to the BASE President by September 30.

The seniority list shall be updated each year or as necessary and ten (10) copies provided to the BASE President. The list shall include teacher certification/licensure currently known and on file and jobs on record for classified employees.

4.15 New Employee Personnel Information

BASE shall be furnished the following information for each new bargaining unit employee within ten (10) working days after the new employee is confirmed by action at an official Board of Education meeting.

- 4.151 Name, home address, and phone number (unless written request by the employee not to furnish home telephone number.)
- 4.152 Date of employment
- 4.153 Job classification and salary

ARTICLE V. EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS

5.01 Work Day

The regular work day, including a lunch break and any rest breaks, shall not exceed eight (8) hours for a custodial/maintenance, secretarial/clerical employee, or a head cook, or seven and one-quarter (7 ½) hours for any other employee.

5.011 Lunch Break

Each employee working six (6) or more hours per day shall be provided a duty-free, uninterrupted lunch break of not less than thirty (30) consecutive minutes.

5.012 Rest Breaks

A classified employee shall be provided a duty-free, uninterrupted rest break of not less than fifteen (15) consecutive minutes for each four (4) consecutive hours of work per day. Such breaks shall be scheduled at a reasonable time during each four hour period. Certificated employees may use planning time for such rest breaks.

5.013 Minimum Work Day

The minimum work day for any employee shall be two (2) hours.

5.014 Bus Drivers' Work Day

Drivers' regular five (5) hour day shall include thirty (30) minutes per day for performance tasks (i.e. cleaning, fueling, maintenance, washing, inspection, etc.). The driver shall be compensated in fifteen

(15) minute intervals over the five (5) hour minimum for established bus routes that exceed the five (5) hour day when a pattern has been established for a two (2) week period after notification to the Superintendent.

5.02 Work Week

The regular work week for employees shall be Monday through Friday and shall not exceed forty (40) hours for custodial/maintenance, and secretarial/clerical employees; thirty-seven and one-half (37 ½) hours for computer tech aides; thirty-six and one-fourth (36 ¼) hours for certified employees, and educational assistants; forty (40) hours for a head cook; fifteen (15) hours for cafeteria workers; and twenty-five (25) hours for bus drivers.

In the event the Board creates a new position, the Superintendent may designate the work week for that position(s) Tuesday through Saturday. Bargaining unit members hired before January 1, 2010, may bid on the new position with the work week Tuesday through Saturday. However, no bargaining unit member hired before January 1, 2010, will be forced to work the regular Tuesday through Saturday work week unless he/she bids for and is awarded the position.

5.03 Work Year

The regular work year for employees shall be as follows:

Bus Driver: 188 workdays, including paid

holidays and 2-inservice days.

Cafeteria Employee: 188 workdays, including (Cook, Cashier/Cook: paid holidays and 2

and Cafeteria Worker) in-service days.

Certificated Employee: 185 workdays,*

including 4 non-student-attendance days and

2 conference days.

*455 student hours: half day Kindergarten

910 student hours: full day Kindergarten – 6th Grade

1001 student hours: Grades 7 – 12

Custodial/Maintenance

Employees: 12 month employee with paid holidays.

Educational Assistants/ 188 workdays, including

Library Aide: paid holidays and 2 in-service days.

Computer Tech Aide: 198 days, including paid holidays and 2 in-service

days.

Secretary: (Elementary

and High School)

212 workdays, including paid holidays.

Student Services/

Guidance Secretary 212 workdays, including paid holidays. Additional work days may be assigned by the Superintendent to meet the needs of the District as well as State and

local reporting requirements, with reasonable

notification to the employee.

Any proposed school year calendar shall be presented for consideration at a meeting described in Section 2.07 of this Agreement before such calendar may be presented to the Board.

Consistent with Section 8.11, employees will receive paid holidays when the holiday occurs within the specific employee's work year.

5.04 Class Size

The Board agrees that class size shall meet the minimum standards set forth by the State of Ohio, Department of Education, and Ohio Administrative Rules. The Board and the Association are cognizant that over-crowded class conditions are not conducive to excellence in teaching nor academic achievement by students. When an association member believes that over-crowded conditions exist, he/she will bring it up to the administration. The administration will then meet with the effected member to receive input on how to resolve the issue. Further, the Board agrees that a desirable maximum academic classroom size is twenty-five (25) students. Every effort to maintain such size shall be utilized. Special needs students count as one and one half (1 ½).

5.041 Contact Time

Maximum student contact time per day for an employee should be three hundred sixty (360) minutes, but shall not exceed one thousand eight hundred (1,800) minutes per week, including any instructional time, study halls, hall monitoring duty and activity period/lunch duty assignment. If a day must be extended specifically because of calamity, this provision will not apply to the day and/or week where the extension occurs.

5.042 Teaching Preparations

The number of different teaching preparations within each department shall be equalized to the extent possible.

5.043 Work Load

The work load of classified employees shall be shared/divided reasonably equal among each classification per scheduled shift. This shall be achieved through a joint committee of 2 bargaining unit members appointed by the BASE President and the Superintendent. The final authority shall rest with the Superintendent in equalizing the work load.

5.05 Planning Time

Each certificated employee should receive uninterrupted planning time of no less than two hundred forty (240) minutes per week, but shall receive no less than two hundred ten (210) minutes per week.

5.051 High School and Middle School

Each high school and middle school certificated employee shall receive no less than one (1) planning period per day.

5.052 <u>Elementary</u>

Each certificated employee on the elementary level shall receive planning time in periods of no less than thirty (30) consecutive minutes each and with no fewer than one period per day subject to Section 5.05.

5.053 Planning Time During School Day

- A. Planning time shall be during the school day while students are present unless dismissal time for students is changed to facilitate planning time without students present.
- B. When an employee has been designated on elementary hours, their planning time will not begin prior to the scheduled elementary student day.

5.054 <u>Early Dismissal & Professional Development</u>

The Board will provide for an early dismissal three (3) times during the school year, two (2) of which shall be on parent - teacher conference days, and one (1) of which shall be on the last student attendance day of the last nine (9) weeks. These half-day dismissal days will be

planned in-service days which must be attended by all certificated employees.

On the three (3) Fridays at the end of the first (1st) three (3) nine (9) weeks, students shall not attend school and those days shall be designated as Professional Development Days requiring the attendance of certificated staff both to finalize nine (9) week grades and to provide more effective professional development.

On these three (3) Professional Development Days, certificated staff will attend school for the normal hours of a typical school day without students being in attendance. Principals at each school shall determine the breakdown of time during the day for finalizing 9-week grading issues and time for professional development which shall not be less than half of the attendance time at school.

During these three (3) Professional Development Days, certificated staff will still have a 30-minute duty free lunch, but no time shall be allocated to planning time in all schools, including elementary schools. Personal leave days may be utilized by certificated staff on these three (3) Professional Development Days only with the prior written approval of the Superintendent.

These Professional Development Days shall not affect the work schedules nor the work hours of classified employees.

The minimum hours of student attendance required by state law shall still be maintained. Administration shall propose and present the annual school calendar with the specific dates for the early-dismissal days and professional development days in accordance with Section 5.03.

5.06 Elementary Music, Art, and Physical Education Employees

Music, art, keyboarding and physical education should be taught by employees with specific certification/licensure in these fields.

5.07 Copy Machine Services

Adequate copy machine service for instructional materials will be available.

5.08 Work Materials

5.081 Equipment, Tools, Supplies, and Materials

Each employee shall be provided, as determined by the immediate supervisor, with the equipment, tools, and supplies necessary to perform the duties of the employee. Employee recommendations shall be considered for such items before such items are purchased. At the employee's request, the Board shall provide smocks, safety glasses, or other appropriate clothing or safety equipment for each employee whose work assignment exposes the employee to grease, dirt, or chemicals.

5.082 <u>Instructional Materials</u>

The Board shall provide each certificated employee the supplies and materials required in the employee's daily responsibilities, including, but not limited to: paper; chalk; chalkboard erasers; copy of the teacher's editions of all texts used, if available; and texts. The Board also will strive to provide current periodicals, reference books, and standard tests.

5.083 School Property

Any school equipment, tools, supplies, and materials including, but not limited to: paper, chalk, chalkboard erasers, copy of the teacher's edition of all texts used, texts, grade books, class schedules, attendance lists, and lesson plan books, are the property of the Board, and are subject to inspection upon demand, and must be returned upon request.

5.09 Money Collection

Except during the first and last two weeks of the school year, certificated employees shall not be requested nor required to collect Board required fees from students.

5.10 Ohio Resident Educator Program

The Bristol Local School District will implement the Ohio Department of Education Resident Educator Program for all teachers who meet the criteria of resident educator years 1 through 2 as defined by the Ohio Department of Education Resident Educator Program. The Superintendent shall select teachers to perform as mentor teachers.

Those bargaining unit members selected to fill the following position shall be paid as set forth:

Lead Mentor \$700 annual stipend

Mentor \$500 annual stipend per resident educator

being mentored

5.11 Employee Orientation and Training

Each new employee shall be provided orientation in the employee's respective assignment by the immediate supervisor. New classified employees also shall receive training to perform the duties in the respective assignment by the shift supervisor and/or full-time classified employees for whose position the new employee is training. Supervisors of classified employees shall provide each employee with a list of their routine daily duties with the understanding that duties are not limited to said list and are subject to change.

5.12 Protection of Employee Property

The Board shall provide a lockable storage unit for the personal property of each employee.

5.13 Employee Rest Areas

Lunchroom and restroom facilities shall be provided for employee use. Such areas shall be secluded from students. Restroom facilities for men and women shall be separate.

5.14 Telephone Use

Adequate private telephone facilities for the purpose of work-related business shall be made available at each work location for employees. Employees shall be allowed the reasonable use of such phones for personal calls. The placing of personal long-distance calls shall be made by using the employee's own personal telephone credit card.

5.15 Employee Parking

Adequate off-street parking facilities shall be provided and maintained properly for employees at each work site. Paving should be included in any new building construction plans.

5.16 Employee Health and Safety

The Board shall notify BASE and employees of all known hazards, and hazards as determined by the appropriate federal, state, and local agencies, and shall correct all such hazards. Employees shall not be required to work under conditions determined by such agencies to be unsafe or hazardous. An employee who believes that they are working or have been asked to work under conditions which are in violation of federal, state, or local health and safety regulations shall inform their immediate supervisor and the appropriate agency shall be contacted immediately. The employee shall not be required to perform such work until the appropriate agency has rendered a decision.

5.17 Student Discipline

The Board shall provide all reasonable assistance and protection of employees in the control and discipline of students. If the employee is not satisfied with the administration's discipline decision, the employee may meet with the appropriate administrator to review and discuss the matter. The employee may, at his/her option, have a BASE representative present during the meeting.

5.18 Classroom Interruptions

Interruptions to a classroom in which class is being held will be held to a minimum. The use of the intercom for announcements shall be limited to once in the morning and once in the afternoon, except for emergencies; and, to the extent necessary, health screenings and pictures.

5.19 Grade Changes

Under normal circumstances, grades given to students by employees are final. If a principal believes a grade is in error or cannot be substantiated or justified, the principal shall discuss the grade with the employee who assigned the grade and, at the request of the employee, a BASE representative. In the event that a grade assigned to a student by an employee is changed without the concurrence of the employee, the employee shall not be held responsible for the grade changed by the administrator, nor is the principal's decision a grievable issue.

5.20 Special Needs Students

Regular and special education teachers shall be notified and given the opportunity to examine an IEP prior to and after a special needs student is placed in their classroom. No regular or special education teacher will be required to perform any medical or custodial care services that were not performed prior to January 1, 1995. All special needs students shall count as one and one-half (1 ½) for the purposes of Section 5.04. (Note for the purpose of this Article students receiving speech services excluded)

5.21 <u>Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC)</u>

5.211 Purpose

A Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC) shall be established to oversee and review professional development plans for course work, determine continuing education units, and/or other equivalent activities necessary for certification or license renewal.

5.212 Committee Composition and Selection

The committee shall be comprised of five members, three BASE teacher representatives appointed by BASE, and two administrators appointed by the Superintendent. The BASE members, if possible, shall be from each building. Terms of office shall be in accordance with the Constitution and By-laws of the LPDC. Replacements shall be selected in the same manner as the original members were selected.

5.213 Duties

The committee shall select a chairperson and shall formulate a constitution and by-laws to control the operations of the Committee, including, but not limited to, the meeting dates, times, what determines a quorum, decision making and an appeal procedure. The appeals process shall not preclude any appeal process established by the county or state, but the local process must be the first pursued. A decision of the LPDC or any body that hears an appeal shall not be subject, in whole or in part, to any portion of the grievance procedure set forth in this negotiated agreement.

5.214 Meetings and Compensation

The LPDC shall schedule four meetings per year or as often as necessary to complete business. Providing professional development funds are available from state, federal or local sources, each teacher member of the LPDC shall be paid an hourly rate based on the per diem at bachelor's step 0, or a flat rate of twenty-five dollars (\$25) per hour whichever is greater for meetings outside the teacher day.

5.22 Duties and Miscellaneous Rules

5.221 Required Time in the Building

Teachers shall be in their buildings prior to opening of school and remain in the buildings until buses transporting their students have departed as long as in accordance with 5.02. The time of opening and closing shall be determined by the Superintendent.

5.222 Required Meetings

Employees shall be required to attend all meetings called by the Superintendent, building principal, or immediate supervisor, unless excused by the person calling the meeting. A day and time shall be designated for such meetings, except for emergency meetings; meetings shall be cancelled when unnecessary; and, except in

emergencies, meetings shall occur no more often than weekly nor last longer than thirty (30) minutes.

5.223 <u>Leaving the Building</u>

The employee should notify the immediate supervisor's office when they leave the school during the workday.

A. Conference/Planning Period

An employee must have the immediate supervisor's authorization before leaving the building during a conference/planning period, provided that the authorization will not be withheld unreasonably.

B. Lunch Period

An employee may leave the building/job assignment during their lunch period by notifying the immediate supervisor's office, unless the employee's job responsibilities preclude them from leaving the building/job assignment.

5.224 Inservice Day

Scheduled inservice meetings shall be held for all employees on the same day(s) and at the same time unless specific special areas inservices are available for individual groups of employees. Any material prepared shall be distributed to all employees.

5.225 Chain of Command

The Board of Education shall establish a chain of command which indicates each classification, or employees' immediate supervisor to whom the employee is responsible. If the Superintendent is the immediate supervisor, the name of a designee shall also be established in the event of the Superintendent's absence.

ARTICLE VI. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

6.01 Job Classification

A. All bargaining unit positions shall be assigned to one of the following job classifications: custodial/ maintenance, food service, secretarial/clerical, educational assistant, transportation, or certificated. Such assignment shall not be unreasonable, arbitrary, or discriminatory.

No custodial/maintenance employee shall be required to have or secure a CDL and take occasional assignments as a substitute bus driver as a condition of continued employment. The Board shall pay to each custodial/maintenance employee who obtains and keeps a valid CDL (with bus driver certification) an annual stipend in the amount of one thousand five hundred dollars (\$1,500) payable at the end of the school year on or about June 1st, subject to the following additional terms and conditions:

- 1. The employee unconditionally agrees to accept assignments as a bus driver on an as needed basis during the school day when the employee would otherwise be working his/her regular shift.
- 2. For any employee who obtains and/or maintains a valid CDL (with bus driver certification) for any period less than the full contract year, such employee shall be entitled to the annual stipend on a pro rata basis.
- 3. Any employee hired after June 30, 2024 must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Board, in its sole discretion, that the employee possesses a driving record free and clean of any convictions for serious traffic violations, including but not limited to DUI convictions.
- 4. The Board shall reimburse a custodial/maintenance employee the fee for obtaining a valid CDL (with bus driver certification).
- C. When a custodial/maintenance employee is assigned to assume a substitute bus driver route, the hours of the custodial/maintenance assignment that are left uncovered due to his/her reassignment as a bus driver, shall be covered by one of the following options in descending order:
 - 1. A substitute custodian shall be employed.
 - 2. Overtime shall be offered, on a first come first serve basis, for the period of time the custodian/maintenance bargaining unit member spent driving bus instead of performing his/her role as custodian.
 - 3. The Maintenance Supervisor shall act as substitute, completing the missing hours/ work that the custodian was unable to complete due to reassignment as a bus driver.

6.02 Job Descriptions

The Board will use the OSBA suggested job descriptions when applicable. The Board reserves the right to establish new bargaining positions and the responsibilities for those positions. Whenever the Board establishes a new bargaining unit position, the parties shall negotiate the compensation for that position and any effects of this new position upon the existing bargaining unit. All job descriptions shall contain the following: (1) the job title, (2) the job classification to which the job is assigned; (3) the job title of the immediate supervisor; (4) a reference to the pay schedule for the position; (5) the length of the regular work day (hours) and work year (workdays) for the position; (6) the qualifications for the position; (7) a list of the job functions, duties, and responsibilities; and (8) the statement, "Such other duties as related reasonably to those above." Employees will not be required to perform duties not specified within their job descriptions, except in emergencies of a non-recurring nature.

6.03 Bargaining Unit Work

Bargaining unit work shall not be performed by volunteers nor assigned to Board personnel not within the bargaining unit, except: (1) when no bargaining unit member is available for or agrees to accept such work; (2) in emergencies; and (3) in the strict continuation of the past practice of "working supervisors" in the custodial/maintenance and the food service areas. Such "working supervisors" shall not be used to replace bargaining unit employees. "Working supervisors" shall be considered the least senior employee regarding bargaining unit work described in Section 6.19. The Board shall enter no agreement with a private concern nor with another governmental unit to provide services that are being provided or may be provided by employees without first notifying BASE in advance and providing BASE an opportunity to bargain.

6.031 Community Volunteers

The Superintendent shall contact the BASE President before implementing the use of any community volunteers.

6.04 Vacancies

A vacancy within the bargaining unit shall exist when a position currently held by a bargaining unit member becomes vacant due to the death, resignation, retirement, non-renewal, termination, promotion or transfer of the bargaining unit member and the Board decides to fill the position or the Board creates a new bargaining unit position. The position of an employee on leave granted pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered a temporary vacancy and shall be filled temporarily in accordance with this Article. A temporary vacancy is for more than twenty (20) consecutive workdays. In the case of a certificated employee, such

temporary vacancy shall exist only when the leave is for one semester or more. Prior to assignment to a position vacated as a result of a leave of absence, an employee shall be advised in writing by the Superintendent that the assignment is temporary subject to another employee returning from leave. Upon return of the employee on leave, an employee assigned to a temporary vacancy shall return to their former position. For each such temporary vacancy, the number of employee assignments ("bumps") required by this section shall not exceed two (2).

6.041 Posting

Each vacancy shall be posted by written notice via e-mail to classified or certified employees by the Superintendent no fewer than ten (10) workdays before the position is to be filled. A copy of each posting shall be sent via e-mail to the BASE President. Such posting shall occur as soon as the vacancy is officially known, but no later than ten (10) workdays from that date. The posting shall state the title of the position, all qualifications for the position, the work location for the position, the date the vacancy will exist, the person to whom application is to be submitted, and shall have attached a copy of the job description for the position. The position shall be filled no later than fifteen (15) workdays after the posting period above or the date the vacancy exists, whichever is later, provided there is a qualified applicant for the position. During the summer months when school is not in regular session, if a vacancy occurs on or after July 10, the Board will email the posting to the employees and that position will remain open for no less than five (5) workdays (i.e., days the Board is open for business). A vacant position may be filled by a substitute during the period of posting.

6.042 Seniority Preference

All job qualifications being equal (as determined by the Superintendent), preference shall be given to the senior qualified employee applicant for a vacancy in accordance with all applicable sections of the following procedure.

- A. First preference shall be given to an employee, in the same job classification as the vacancy and who holds that job.
- B. Second preference shall be given to an employee in the same job classification as the vacancy if the vacancy offers the employee more work hours or pay per year.
- C. Interviews shall be given to an employee(s) from a different job classification. Classified employees filling a vacancy from one

job classification to another shall start at Step 1 in the new job classification.

6.05 Transfers

6.051 <u>Definition</u>

A transfer shall be the assignment or reassignment of an employee to a different work location, a different position, a different bus route, or a different shift. For a certificated employee, a transfer also shall be assignment to a different grade level or subject area.

6.052 Involuntary Transfer

Any involuntary transfer shall not be arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory. No vacancy will be filled by means of an involuntary transfer if there is a qualified volunteer available to fill such position.

Certificated employees shall not be assigned to positions outside the scope of their certification, except with the consent of the employee and BASE. Certificated employees shall be notified in writing by the close of the school year of any change in building, grade level, or subject area for the fall semester and by December 15 for the spring semester, except that such changes may be made afterward because of unforeseen circumstances. A classified employee shall be notified no less than ten (10) workdays in advance except with the consent of the employee, of any involuntary transfer, the reason therefor, and the effective date of the transfer. In an emergency, a temporary involuntary transfer may be made without prior notification, provided the employee so transferred shall be notified of the reason therefor within three (3) working days following the transfer.

An involuntary transfer will be made only after a meeting between the employee and the Superintendent if said transfer is to another building, except that for emergency transfers, the transferred employee shall have the right to such a meeting within three (3) working days following receipt of the written reason.

Involuntary transfer will be made only after a meeting between the employee and the employee's immediate supervisor if the transfer or reassignment is within the same building. The employee shall have notice of the meeting and the subject of the meeting no less than two (2) workdays in advance. The employee may, at their option, have a BASE representative present at such meeting.

6.06 Standards Based Teacher Evaluation

- 6.061 Licensed employees who spend at least 50% of their time providing content student instruction will be evaluated in accordance with the board adopted Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation System pursuant to 3319.111 and 3319.112.
- All matters contained within the System (i.e., rating level, not category utilization) shall be considered grievable under the grievance procedure contained within this agreement. Any revisions to the Board's Standards-Based Teacher Evaluation System must be bargained prior to implementation to the extent required by law.
- Nothing herein shall be deemed to alter or otherwise affect any legal obligation of the Board to engage in bargaining, upon request of the Association, on matters which affect the terms and conditions of employment.

6.064 Evaluation Review Committee

An ongoing committee shall be maintained over the life of the agreement to review and recommend revisions to ensure the continuation of an effective evaluation process. Recommendation for revisions made by the committee shall be submitted to the Board for approval.

A. <u>Composition</u>

The committee shall be comprised of the BASE president and two (2) licensed bargaining unit members appointed by the BASE president and three (3) administrators. The BASE president may invite an additional teacher to attend committee meetings for input and discussion, but that teacher shall not be part of the consensus process. Bargaining unit committee members shall be teacher leaders representative of elementary, secondary, and specialty areas within the district.

B. Operational Procedures

The committee shall be chaired jointly by a bargaining unit committee member and an administrator with meeting dates being mutually agreeable.

C. All decisions of the Committee, as set forth herein, will be achieved by consensus. Problem solving and consensus

building training shall be provided to the Committee via FMCS if the committee determines a need.

D. At the start of each school year and at least ten (10) days after any revisions are approved by the Board to the Standard-Based Teacher Evaluation System policy, the superintendent shall provide a printed copy of the system policy to the BASE president.

6.07 Classified Evaluation Schedule/Procedure

Employees may be evaluated, annually, by their immediate supervisor. All classified employees shall have the opportunity to review any and all written evaluations regarding their work. The evaluation shall be based on job descriptions and the direct observation and knowledge of the evaluator. The evaluator may include recommendations for improvements and provisions for assisting the employee in implementing any recommendations made. The employee shall acknowledge that they have read the evaluation by signing the evaluation (such signature shall not indicate agreement or disagreement). The employee shall receive a copy of the evaluation and shall have the opportunity to make any comments regarding the evaluation by responding in writing where as such correspondence shall be attached to the evaluation.

6.071 Classified Observations

Each evaluation shall be based on two (2) actual observations of the employee's job-related performance in their work area by the evaluator for no less than thirty (30) consecutive minutes each. The observations shall be conducted openly and with the full knowledge of the employee. The observations shall be announced to the employee in advance.

6.072 <u>Classified Evaluation Report</u>

Each employee evaluation report shall be in writing and shall include: (1) the dates, times, and places of the observations on which the report is based; (2) the evaluator's assessment of the areas in the employee's performance that are strengths, that need improvement, or that are unsatisfactory; (3) the evaluator's recommendations for improvement in the areas cited as needing improvement or as unsatisfactory; (4) the assistance given or to be given by the evaluator in the areas cited as needing improvement or as unsatisfactory; (5) a statement of a reasonable period in which the desired improvements are to be attained; (6) a statement of the consequence that may occur if acceptable improvement is not shown; and (7) the resultant progress of the employee in areas cited on the previous observation evaluation

report as needing improvement or as unsatisfactory. The evaluation report shall carry the dated signature of the evaluator and a space for the dated signature of the employee. The employee's signature shall indicate only that the employee has read the evaluation and shall not indicate necessarily agreement with its content. There shall be no more than two copies of the report; one for the employee and one for the employee's personnel file.

6.073 Classified Conference

Each evaluation report of an employee shall include a conference between the evaluator and the employee, within ten (10) workdays after the completion of both observations, to review and discuss the report before it is signed. Days an employee is absent will not be included in the ten (10) workday limit. The employee shall be provided a copy of the evaluation report at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the conference. An employee shall be entitled to have present at the conference a BASE representative, unless SERB rules on such matter, at which time SERB's ruling will prevail.

6.08 Other Evaluations

Any evaluations of employee performance in addition to those required by this Section shall be accomplished in a manner consistent with the provisions of this Section 6.13.

6.09 Assignments to More than One School

An employee assigned to more than one school or other work location shall be evaluated in that school designated by the Superintendent as the employee's "home building." Input may be received from the immediate supervisor from another building by means of observation reports accomplished in accordance with the procedures in Section 6.06 and Section 6.07.

6.10 Evaluation Notices

Notice of observation and the copy of the evaluation shall be issued directly to the employee.

6.11 Video Cameras

Video cameras may be used on school buses and on school premises. All employees shall have full knowledge of where video cameras are located and full knowledge of their use concerning any employee. Video cameras shall not be used or referred to as the sole basis for evaluation or to initiate discipline of any employee.

6.12 Non-Renewal

6.121 Limited contract teachers who are employed after July 1, 2010, and who have been employed two (2) or fewer years shall be notified by the Superintendent if they will not be recommended to the Board for rehiring for the next school year. Such notification shall be made at least ten (10) days prior to Board action on their contract, such teachers shall have the right to meet with the Board in Executive Session with representation to discuss the intended action of their contract.

This non-renewal procedure for such teachers supersedes all provisions of O.R.C. §3319.11 and O.R.C. §3319.111, and such teachers shall have no right to challenge said non-renewal pursuant to O.R.C. §§3319.11 or 3319.111 or through the negotiated grievance procedure or other tribunal.

After the two (2) year probationary period, a teacher who seeks relief from non-renewal of a teaching contract may either pursue his/her rights under the Collective Bargaining Agreement, including the right to grievance procedure and arbitration or, at the teacher's option, pursue his/her statutory rights. Once selecting an option, the teacher is confined to the option. Non-renewal of all teachers not covered by Section A above shall be in accordance with O.R.C. §3319.11.

Non-teaching employees shall be non-renewed in accordance with O.R.C. §3319.083.

6.13 <u>Employee Discipline</u>

Any discipline of any employee, including, but not limited to, reprimand, suspension, demotion, or discharge shall be only for just cause; except that suspension and termination of certificated employees shall be pursuant to Section 3319.16 ORC.

6.131 Complaints

Any complaint by someone other than the Board supervisory/administrative personnel may be reported informally to the employee without disciplinary action and with nothing being placed in the personnel file.

Any discipline of an employee on the basis of a complaint by someone other than Board supervisory/administrative personnel may occur only after the matter is reported in writing to the employee and the employee has had the opportunity to discuss the matter with their immediate supervisor. If the employee disputes the factual accuracy of the complaint, the complaint may not be placed in the employee's personnel file nor may the initiation of other action result from the complaint until the employee has had the opportunity to present their version of what occurred in the presence of the immediate supervisor. The employee shall be entitled to have present at such conference a BASE representative.

6.132 Representation

An employee shall be entitled to have present a BASE representative at any time the employee is to be disciplined for any reason.

6.133 Confidentiality

The discipline of an employee shall be imposed in private.

6.14 Official Personnel Files

The Superintendent and Treasurer will maintain official personnel and payroll files for each employee which will be maintained and located in the office of the Superintendent and Treasurer.

6.141 Log of Entries

Effective January 2, 1991, each personnel file shall contain a form titled "Log of Entries" to include all of the following information (if known, in the case of items already in the file) regarding all items placed in the file: (1) a brief description of the item; (2) the date shown on the item; (3) the date the item was first placed in the file; and (4) the identification of the source of the item. No item from any anonymous source may be placed in the personnel file. Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the Board from considering items placed in an employee's personnel file that are not logged properly as the result of clerical oversight. Said "Log of Entries" shall apply only to complaints, investigations and/or disciplinary actions and not ordinary personnel and/or payroll items.

6.142 Detrimental Items

Any item detrimental to an employee's employment status and which is without substance, no longer pertinent, or otherwise inappropriate may be removed from the employee's personnel file and destroyed upon request by the employee to the Superintendent, provided that the refusal to do so may be subject to the grievance procedure. However,

no record shall be destroyed in violation of law concerning public records.

6.143 <u>Employee Knowledge of Items</u>

Complaints, investigations and/or disciplinary items may not be placed in an employee's official personnel file unless the item has been made known to the employee, the employee has had an opportunity to read the item, and the employee has signed the item. The employee's signature shall indicate only that they have read the item and shall not necessarily indicate agreement with its contents. The Superintendent shall review all such items before they are placed in an employee's personnel file.

6.144 Review and Reproduction of File

Each employee shall have the right, upon request, to review and reproduce one copy without charge to the employee any contents of their personnel file that previously have not been made available. A representative of BASE may, at the request of the employee, accompany the employee in such review and may, upon written authorization by the employee, review and reproduce one copy of any contents of the employee's personnel file that previously have not been made available. The employee shall have the right to respond in writing to any item(s) in their personnel file and to have the response attached to such item. The employee shall be notified when a request has been made for inspection of the employee's file. The employee shall have the right to obtain additional copies of the personnel file at the employee's cost.

6.15 Medical Examination

Any medical examination required of an employee subsequent to employment shall be provided at no cost to the employee. Excluding bus drivers, such examinations shall be performed during the employee's workday. The choice of medical examiner(s) shall be made by the Board.

6.16 Criminal Record Check

All new employees must have a criminal background check on file in The Treasurer's Office prior to beginning service to the District. New employees will be responsible for the expense of the criminal background check. All current employees required to have a criminal background check to be in compliance with Federal or State law must provide a copy to the Board. The Board will pay for criminal background checks required by law or at the Board's request.

6.17 <u>Substitutes for Absentees</u>

Except during the summer break a qualified substitute employee shall be employed for any absent employee whenever available. An employee shall not be required to substitute for an absent employee, except as provided in Section 9.11 of this Agreement. However, an employee may substitute voluntarily during their off duty hours for an absent employee. A substitute shall be expected to perform all duties of the absent employee.

6.18 Scheduling (Classified Employees)

The schedule of a classified employee shall be made with preference to seniority for the following: the time of the lunch period, the time of the break periods; vacations; bus routes. Shift employees may choose to substitute for day turn absences by building. When so doing, they waive the premium pay for the time. Sweeper-cleaner will be paid at the first step of the custodial pay rate when substituting for a custodian. Shift employees will be called/notified prior to calling regular subs, except that the Board may call substitutes prior to calling regular employees to work open or absent custodial/maintenance shifts other than day shift. Shift employees may notify their supervisor in writing if they choose not to be called/notified. A shift employee who chooses to be reinstated on the called/notification list will submit the request in writing to their supervisor. The supervisor shall acknowledge the reinstatement in writing to the employee.

6.19 Overtime Assignments

Any assignments of overtime work to an employee shall be voluntary and shall be made with preference to the seniority of qualified employees within the job classification in which the overtime work occurs. Minimum overtime assignments not contiguous to a regular shift shall be two (2) hours. Such assignments shall be on a rotating basis beginning with the employee next less senior to the employee last given such overtime assignment. Overtime opportunities shall be made known to employees as soon as possible and assigned on a monthly basis. Extra athletic bus trips including swim program will be grouped by season/sport, not by individual games. Working supervisors shall not receive bargaining unit overtime work.

Overtime opportunities shall be offered on a rotating basis to employee(s) within a classification who are qualified to do the work. If all qualified employees within a classification decline or fail to timely respond to the overtime work assignment, a substitute may be utilized. If all employees decline the overtime and a qualified substitute cannot be timely secured, then the employee who was up for the overtime shall be required to work the overtime.

In performing a combination or primary job duties, supplemental job duties, and/or substitute job duties; a classified employee will not work over forty (40)

hours collectively in any work week except with the prior permission of the Superintendent. Overtime, supplemental jobs and/or substitute jobs will not be considered for seniority or any other benefits provided under this Agreement. Field trips which require an overnight stay will be calculated at the employee's regular rate of pay unless the employee exceeds 40 work hours in that week (timely scheduled accrued paid vacation hours shall be included in the aforementioned 40 work hours). Sleep or hours not supervising students will not be calculated as paid hours. Hours exceeding 40 work hours per week shall be paid at time and one-half of employee's regular rate of pay in accord with Federal law in existence at the time of the overtime work. (Eff. first payroll period after ratification.)

6.20 Assignments for Medical Reasons

An employee removed from an assignment as a result of failing to pass a medical examination required for the position shall be allowed to perform other available bargaining unit work for which they are qualified until such medical examination is passed. Continuing contract rights held by such employee shall be waived until the employee returns to the former position or earns continuing contract in the new position. Pay shall begin at the entry level rate and continue until a higher rate is earned or the employee returns to the former position.

6.21 Non-Discrimination

The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied to all employees without regard to the race, creed, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, or handicap.

ARTICLE VII – SUPPLEMENTAL PAY POSITIONS

7.01 Posting and Filling Position

In the Spring, the Superintendent will post vacant supplemental pay positions as listed in Appendix D of this Agreement. Applications received within ten (10) calendar days of the posting will be accepted by the Superintendent for those positions listed on the posting. The Superintendent may post, in his discretion, vacant supplemental positions before the Spring. Applications received within ten (10) calendar days of the postings will be accepted and considered by the Superintendent. All vacancies will be posted.

7.02 Supplemental Awarding Preference

Supplemental position vacancies shall be awarded to qualified certificated bargaining unit member applicants meeting the bid requirements. If two (2) or more certificated bargaining unit applicants are deemed by the Board to be equally qualified, the vacancy shall be filled by the more senior applicant.

7.03 Non-Renewal of Supplemental Contract

Supplemental contracts will automatically be non-renewed June 1 each year unless prior to that date the Board renews the supplemental contract of the current holder, after considering the timely recommendations of both the building administrator and the athletic director. If a program is cancelled, resulting in a supplemental contract being terminated within fourteen (14) days of the first practice/meeting, one-fourth (1/4) of the supplemental amount shall be paid to the employee of the terminated supplemental contract.

7.04 Payment for Supplemental Positions

Payment for all supplemental positions will be paid with the first paycheck of the supplemental position holder immediately following the end of the athletic season (Fall, Winter or Spring) or academic year, whichever is applicable. If coaches wish to have payment split three ways throughout the season, payment will be included in their regular paycheck. Notice of payment option to be given to the athletic director at the start of the season. The tax rate for single payment shall be at the applicable Federal and State rates in effect at time of payment.

7.05 <u>Summer School and Evening School Positions</u>

All openings for summer and evening school administered by the Board shall be posted and filled in accordance with provisions stated in this Agreement.

7.06 Buses/Field Trips

All field/extra trips shall be offered to regularly employed bus drivers from a seniority rotating roster. Drivers shall have the option of taking a field trip in lieu of making their usual run.

The Board may elect to transport students by charter buses for special events or extra trips involving out-of-state or overnight travel.

All field trips shall have at least one (1) teacher/adult as a passenger on board the bus to and from the activity.

Sitting time at the event shall be considered as time worked for pay purposes, unless said field/extra trip requires an overnight stay. Sleep or hours not supervising/present with students will not be calculated as paid hours.

All field/extra trips shall be paid at the employee's current hourly rate except as noted above.

No buses are required for a field/extra trip unless at least ten (10) students are needed to be transported.

7.07 Non-Paid Extra Duties

An employee shall have the right to refuse, except for a short-term emergency situation, any non-paying extra duties without fear of recrimination or reprisals.

ARTICLE VIII. LEAVES, HOLIDAYS, AND VACATIONS

8.01 Sick Leave

An employee unable to work because of personal illness, pregnancy, injury or because of the illness or death of a member of the employee's immediate family, or because of exposure to a communicable disease which could be communicated to other employees, shall be granted sick leave without loss of pay in accordance with the provisions below.

8.011 Accumulation

Each employee shall accumulate 1.25 days of sick leave for each month of employment, including time spent on any paid leave. A new employee shall be advanced five (5) days of sick leave credit immediately upon approval of employment by the Board. A current employee who has exhausted all earned sick leave shall be entitled to a one-time advancement of five (5) days of sick leave credit over the life of the contract. The days advanced shall be deducted from future sick leave earned by the employee. All sick leave accumulated previously in public employment in Ohio shall be credited to an employee up to the maximum accumulation described below. Sick leave accumulation shall be unlimited.

Sick leave will be converted for less than full-time employees who are moving from one job to another that presents an increase in hours. One sick day will be based on an 8-hour workday and therefore each hour of the position shall equate to .125 of a day. For example, an employee who transfers from a 3-hour position will receive .375 credit for each sick day earned as a 3-hour employee.

8.012 Immediate Family

The immediate family of an employee shall include mother, mother-inlaw, father, father-in-law, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, wife, husband, children, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, foster children, grandparents and grandchildren, (step parents are included), and any individual(s) living in the same household in permanent and domestic character under one head shall also be defined as a member(s) of the immediate family.

A. Bereavement Leave

An employee shall be granted three (3) bereavement days per year for immediate family without loss of pay. The appropriate form must be completed including the relationship.

8.013 Sick Leave Forms

Necessary sick leave forms must be filled out in the immediate supervisor's office by the employee on the first school day back on the regular job, except that an employee who anticipates being absent for two weeks or more shall submit a completed sick leave form provided by the Administration and shall return such forms to the Treasurer's office on or before a date designated by the Treasurer.

- A. A doctor's excuse is required of any employee absent five (5) consecutive days.
- B. An employee absent for an extended period (two weeks or more) is required to provide a doctor's authorization upon return to work.

8.014 <u>Use of Sick Leave</u>

An employee shall be allowed the use of sick leave in half-day increments and, upon approval of the immediate supervisor, in quarter-day increments.

8.015 Falsification of sick leave is grounds for termination of employment under sections ORC §3319.081 and ORC §3319.16.

8.02 Parental Leave

8.021 <u>Definition</u>

A "parental leave" is defined as absence from school without pay by an employee who is pregnant, is adopting a child, or is to become a parent by reason of pregnancy of his/her spouse.

8.022 Notification of Pregnancy

In the event that an employee becomes pregnant, the employee shall notify the Superintendent by the end of the fifth month of pregnancy. This notification shall be in writing and shall include the following:

- A. A medical certificate signed by the employee's attending physician confirming the pregnancy and indicating the anticipated birth date of the baby.
- B. In the event the employee desires a parental leave, the employee's notification statement should include the approximate date of the commencement of said leave.

8.023 Procedure for Parental Leave

If an employee who is not required to send the Notification of Pregnancy pursuant to Section 8.022 desires parental leave, the employee shall notify the Superintendent at least thirty (30) days in advance of the commencement of said leave. This notification shall be in writing and shall indicate the actual date for commencement of said leave. In emergency and unusual situations, the thirty (30) day written notification requirement shall be waived by the Superintendent of Schools.

8.024 Term of Parental Leave

All parental leaves shall be for the remainder of the school year in which the child is born or adopted and the next succeeding school year. Said leave shall begin on the first day of the parental leave and the employee shall notify the Superintendent as to the employee's intention regarding the return to employment no later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the leave. If the employee indicates their intention to return to work, the employee shall follow the same procedure enumerated in all subsequent sections of the parental leave policy. Upon approval of the Superintendent based upon special circumstances, a parental leave of absence may be extended for a period not to exceed one (1) school year.

- A. Return to duties will be guaranteed no later than the first work day of the school year following the expiration date of the parental leave.
- B. At the end of the leave, the employee shall be returned to the same or similar position which they held.
- 8.025 All insurance coverage provided by the Board and desired by the employee shall be continued, for those who are on parental leave, upon the payment of the premium by the employee to the Treasurer not later than the 25th day of each month preceding the month for which the premium is due.

8.026 <u>Emergency Termination of Parental Leave</u>

Upon written request of the employee to the Superintendent to terminate the parental leave due to unusual circumstances (i.e. loss of pregnancy, adoption) the employee may return to work during the school year when the Superintendent is able to comply with all applicable Agreement provisions but shall not be later than ninety (90) days upon receipt of the written request by the employee.

8.027 Use of Sick Leave for Pregnancy Purposes

- A. An employee shall be permitted to use accumulated unused sick leave days for absence due to pregnancy.
- B. When an employee has exhausted all of their accumulated sick leave all insurance coverage provided by the Board and desired by the employee shall be continued for those who are on such leave, upon payment of the premium by the employee to the Treasurer not later than the 25th day of each month preceding the month for which the premium is due.
- C. The use of sick leave after the birth of a child is comparable to the use of sick leave for other medical reasons. Therefore, as soon as medical examination verifies that an employee is medically able to come back to work, parental leave shall become effective and sick leave pay ends.

8.03 Personal Leave (Paid)

Each employee shall be granted up to four (4) days of leave for personal reasons without loss of pay except twelve (12) month employees who shall be granted five (5) days of leave for personal reasons without loss of pay. Four (4) personal days shall be unrestricted. An employee shall not be required nor requested to give reasons for the use of such leave. Any personal leave days unused at the end of the year shall be converted to sick leave at a rate of one (1) personal leave day for one (1) additional sick leave day. An employee who starts work in mid-year will be given personal days on a pro-rated basis by the quarter of a year.

8.031 Personal Leave Requests

A. Requests for approval of personal leave shall be made to the Superintendent at least seven (7) days prior to the requested day(s), except in the case of emergency.

- B. In case of emergency use of personal leave, the employee shall contact the immediate supervisor or Superintendent in person or via phone for emergency approval.
- C. Personal leave may not be used in less than one-half (1/2) day increments.
- D. Personal leave during the first or last week of school shall be avoided whenever possible and are subject to Superintendent approval.

8.032 Restriction on Number

Only two (2) certified employees (K-6) and two (2) certified employees (7-12) shall be granted personal leave per day in any building on a first-come, first-served basis, except for the emergency use described above.

Only four (4) classified employees district wide, and no more than two (2) per location, shall be granted personal leave per day on a first-come first served basis, except for emergency use as described above. Locations for classified employees for purposes of this section shall be: Transportation, Custodial/Maintenance, Food Service, Educational Assistants and Secretarial/Clerical.

8.04 Unpaid Leave

An employee may be granted, upon request, leave without pay for a period of up to one year for reasons not provided elsewhere in this agreement. Such reasons shall include, but not be limited to, professional study in semester increments. Upon approval of the Board, such leave may be extended up to one (1) year.

8.05 Paid Holidays During Paid Leave

When a paid holiday occurs during an employee's use of paid leave, such holiday shall not be charged against any leave days to which the employee is entitled.

8.06 <u>Insurance Coverage During Unpaid Leave</u>

An employee granted a leave of absence without pay as provided in this Article shall be given the opportunity to continue insurance coverages in existing programs, provided that the premiums for such insurance programs shall be paid by the employee on a monthly basis in advance of the month due.

8.07 <u>Self-Improvement Leave</u>

8.071 Definition

Professional leave is any absence from duty for the purpose of attending a professional meeting, workshop, or clinic, or for observing an educational program, exhibit, performance, or process, or participation in an educational study, discussion or conference, which would improve the competence of the employee, or for rendering a service to the school through the application of knowledge gained.

- 8.072 The Superintendent has authority to approve or disapprove requests to attend professional meetings for all employees and may request a written report about such meeting.
- 8.073 Permission to attend such meeting shall be granted on the basis of value to the District and finances available for substitute pay.
- 8.074 No more than two employees shall be excused from school to attend such meetings at a time.

8.08 Jury Duty; Under Subpoena

An employee shall be granted leave without loss of pay when called to jury duty or to serve as a witness under subpoena.

8.09 Military Leave

8.091 <u>Leave Without Pay</u>

An employee required or volunteering to serve in a branch of the United States military service shall be granted leave without pay for such service provided that the employee enters such service within forty (40) workdays from the end of their employment. An employee returning from such leave shall be returned to employment under the same type of contract as that which they last held, provided application for re-employment is filed within three (3) months following the date of discharge, other than dishonorable. For certificated employees, such employment shall begin at the beginning of the next school semester if application is made more than thirty days before the semester begins.

8.092 Leave With Pay

Any employee who is a member of a United States military reserve unit or the National Guard, shall be allowed up to thirty-one (31) workdays leave without loss of pay or other accumulated leave when ordered to active duty by the appropriate unit during the employee's regular work year.

8.10 Return From Leave

Upon return from leave granted pursuant to this agreement, an employee shall be returned to the same position held at the time the leave commenced or, if the position no longer exists, to another position mutually acceptable. Any employee filling the position of an employee on leave who will return to the same position upon return from leave shall be given written notice at the time of employment or assignment that the position will no longer be available when the employee on leave returns. Such notification of return must occur no later than thirty (30) days before the employee intends to return to work for classified employees and thirty (30) days before the start of a grading period for certificated employees, provided that an employee may return on shorter notice with the Superintendent's approval.

8.11 Holidays

The following holidays shall be days off work with pay for the classified employee, when the holiday occurs within the work year of the employee as described in Section 5.03 of this Agreement:

January 1
Third Monday in January
Third Monday in February
Friday before Easter
Last Monday in May
Juneteenth
July 4
First Monday in September
Fourth Thursday in November
Fourth Friday in November (Day after Thanksgiving)
December 24
December 25

A holiday occurring on a Saturday or Sunday shall be observed on the preceding Friday or succeeding Monday, respectively. Except in case of extreme emergency, work on a holiday is voluntary and the classified employee shall be compensated at their regular hourly rate plus one-and-one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular hourly rate of pay per hour worked.

8.12 Vacation

Classified employees employed on a twelve-month work calendar shall accrue paid vacation leave at a rate of one (1) day per month, to a maximum of ten (10)

days per year, for employees during the first five (5) years of employment; oneand-one-fourth (1-1/4) days per month to a maximum of fifteen (15) days for employees during the sixth (6th) through twelfth (12th) years of employment; two (2) days per month, to a maximum of twenty (20) days per year, for employees during the thirteenth (13th) through twentieth (20th) year of employment, and two and one quarter (2-1/4) days per year for all employees with more than twenty (20) years of employment to a maximum of twenty five (25) days as follows:

<u>YEARS</u>	<u>ACCRUAL</u>	<u>MAXIMUM</u>
0-5	1 day per month	10
6-12	1-1/4 days per month	15
13-20	2 days per month	20
21+	2-1/4 days per month	25

Such leave shall accrue to a maximum of thirty (30) days for carry-over to successive years. Upon termination of employment for any reason or assignment to a position for which vacation leave is not provided, an employee shall be paid at the time of such termination or assignment at the employee's daily rate of pay for each day of accrued vacation leave. In case of the death of the employee, such pay for accrued vacation leave shall be paid in accordance with Section 2113.04 ORC or to the employee's estate. A vacation leave request shall be submitted to the Superintendent at least five (5) workdays before the vacation is to be used, except when extenuating circumstances exist. Vacation leave may be used at any time during the year and may not be denied unreasonably by the Superintendent.

8.13 <u>Emergency School Closing</u>

When an emergency arises to close any or all schools, the Superintendent shall implement administrative procedures immediately which will include announcement over local television and radio stations, when such services are made available, and will include notice to employees through a telephone network of supervisors and employees.

8.131 Leave Not Deducted

When one or more work locations are closed officially by the Superintendent, no leave days arranged previously by an employee will be deducted for such emergency days.

8.132 <u>Emergency Closing Pay</u>

When only selected employees are required and able to work during an emergency school closing, such employees shall receive compensation in accordance with Section 9.04 (Overtime Pay) of this Agreement.

8.133 <u>Emergency Closing Effective</u>

An emergency closing only exists after official notification by the superintendent to appropriate agencies and any hours worked before this notification will be considered part of a normal workday.

8.14 Attendance Incentive

Each employee shall be compensated at the end of the work year as specified below for sick leave or personal leave earned or allowable, but not used, during that work year. (If an employee is hired by December 31, they are eligible for one-half of the incentive.)

- 8.141 \$300 if no sick leave, bereavement or personal leave is used.
- \$150 if one day of sick leave, bereavement or personal leave is used.
- 8.143 \$100 if two days of sick leave, bereavement or personal leave is used.

8.15 Assault Leave

Employees who are absent from work because of disability resulting from an assault which occurs in the course of Board employment shall be granted a paid assault leave by the Board in lieu of sick leave for a period not to exceed sixty (60) workdays. The amount paid shall be reduced by the amount of Workers Compensation received by the employee.

Before an employee is entitled to assault leave, they must furnish a written, signed statement on Board forms together with a physician's statement to justify the use of assault leave as soon as reasonably possible after the assault. The Board may request the employee who has been assaulted to file an assault complaint with the appropriate officials in the appropriate jurisdiction.

8.16 Substituting During Unpaid Leave

Any employee on unpaid leave may serve as a substitute employee.

8.17 Family Medical Leave Act of 1993

Employees shall be entitled to provisions of the "Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993", and any enacted amendments, but an employee may be required to substitute paid sick leave provided in this Agreement for any leave provided by FMLA.

The employee must have actually worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period. Paid time off, sick leave, and summer vacation do not count toward the 1,250-hour requirement.

If eligible, an employee is permitted to continue FMLA leave across summer break and school holidays. An employee on FMLA leave will not be charged FMLA leave for any school holiday and/or summer break, and the employee may continue the FMLA leave upon the resumption of school. For example, an eligible employee who takes FMLA leave at the end of the school year will be permitted to continue said FMLA upon the first work day of the following school year until the expiration of the leave.

The twelve (12)-month period or year under "FMLA" shall be a rolling twelve (12) month period measured backward from the date an employee uses FMLA leave.

ARTICLE IX. COMPENSATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS

9.01 Classified Employee Pay Schedules

9.011	Effective July 1, 2024 – 2.00%
	See attached Salary Schedule.
9.012	Effective July 1, 2025 – 2.00%
	See attached Salary Schedule.
9.013	Effective July 1, 2026 – 2.00%

9.02 Certificated Employee Pay Schedules

9.021	Effective July 1, 2024 – 2.50%
	See attached Salary Schedule.
9.022	Effective July 1, 2025 – 2.50%

See attached Salary Schedule. (See Appendix B)

See attached Salary Schedule.

9.023 Effective July 1, 2026 – 2.50%

See attached Salary Schedule. (See Appendix C)

9.024 When a certificated employee reaches Step 15 on the Salary Schedule, the employee shall receive a one-time, lump sum payment of one thousand five hundred dollars (\$1,500) in the second (2nd) pay of September. This payment shall not attach to the employee's base salary or carry over into any other year. (For the 2024-25 contract year only, the Board will provide this payment to any employee who will be placed on Step 15 effective with the 2024-25 contract year, as well as any employee who is placed at Step 16 or greater in the salary schedule.)

9.025 Adjustment to Higher Salary

A letter informing the Treasurer of completed college work and all official transcripts resulting in a change of status must be on file in the office of the Treasurer by August 15 for an employee to receive the increased compensation beginning in the first pay in September. If an employee does not submit the appropriate documentation by August 15, the employee may submit the appropriate documentation by January 15, which will result in the employee receiving the increased compensation as of the first pay in February. Adjustments on the salary schedule will be made only after the documentation is received. Two (2) semester hours of credit are equal to three (3) quarter hours of credit for placement on the salary schedule.

Additional hours for credit to be applied for increased benefits based on additional training must be graduate course work hours (unless hours are being utilized for obtaining or renewing a license) earned after the employee earns his/her license and/or after obtaining his/her Master's Degree for advancement horizontally on the certificated employee's pay schedule. Hours earned before obtaining an employee's teacher's license or hours obtaining a Master's Degree will not be applied for increased benefits on the salary schedule.

9.03 Experience Credit

An employee shall advance one step on the index pay schedule on July 1 of each year worked, provided the employee has been on active payroll status for at least (120) work days during the previous work year, including service as a substitute employee. Service as a substitute employee are not "days" under Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.09 (B) or "year" for purpose of determining

eligibility for continuing contract status under Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.081 and 3319.11, unless the substitute employee works at least one-hundred twenty (120) days during the school year and receives a contract of employment for the succeeding school year. A new employee shall be granted a step on the pay schedule for each year of comparable previous work experience to a maximum of ten (10) years, including, to a maximum of five (5) years, service in a branch of the United States military.

9.04 Overtime Pay

A classified employee whose actual hours worked exceed forty (40) hours (but including timely scheduled accrued paid vacation hours) per week shall be paid for each overtime hour worked at an hourly rate one-and-one-half (1.5) times the employee's regular hourly rate. Such overtime pay may be in one-fourth (1/4) hour increments, provided that any part of the one-fourth (1/4) hour period worked shall result in pay for the full one-fourth (1/4) hour.

9.05 Expense Reimbursement

An employee with assigned duties that require the use of the employee's personal automobile shall be reimbursed at the prevailing Internal Revenue Service rate per mile of business travel plus the actual costs of tolls and parking. When business travel extends beyond the normal workday, the employee shall be reimbursed for all other necessary and actual expenses incurred during such travel, including, but not limited to, room and meals. The employee will be responsible for completing all requisition, purchase order and expense verification.

9.06 Paycheck Procedure

All employees, Certificated and Classified, shall be paid in twenty-four (24) pays. Pays will be issued twice per month, on the 10th and the 25th of every month. If the pay date of the 10th or 25th of the month lands on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, the pay will be issued on the weekday prior to the Saturday, Sunday or holiday. This Section will be implemented no earlier than the 2025-2026 contract year.

Employees shall be on direct deposit through the Treasurer's office. An employee's request for direct payroll deposit will be on forms created by the Board for this purpose. Employees will receive by e-mail their direct deposit notification. Any account changes must be submitted to the Treasurer's office in writing ten (10) working days prior to the effective pay date. Account changes will be limited to two (2) per school year.

9.061 Overtime, Extended Service, and Supplemental Contract Pay

Pay for overtime work or extended service shall be included in the paycheck issued for the payroll period in which the overtime or extended service occurred. Pay for academic, supplemental contract positions found in Appendix D of this Agreement shall be paid with the first paycheck of the supplemental position holder at the conclusion of the supplemental academic program. When a classified position(s) listed on the Supplemental Pay Schedule, Appendix D, is for the entire school year, said pay shall be divided in equal bi-weekly payments and included with their regular pay check.

9.062 Payroll Deductions

Deductions shall be made from paychecks as required by law or upon the authorization of the employee for the following reasons:

- A. Withholding taxes (Federal, Ohio, Pennsylvania, or local) (Trumbull County only)
- B. STRS/SERS Retirement systems
- C. Health and Life Insurance, including flexible savings accounts
- D. Bristol School District 403(b) Plan
- E. Credit Union through direct deposit only
- F. BASE
- G. United Way
- H. Ohio Deferred Compensation (457) Plan

9.063 Payroll Errors

In the event of a payroll error resulting in an underpayment to an employee, the employee shall receive correct compensation within one (1) pay period of written notice to the Treasurer unless another arrangement is agreed upon. If the payroll error results in an overpayment to an employee, the employee shall be notified in writing of the error. The employee shall repay the amount of overpayment immediately upon receipt of notice thereof or in equal installments in the same number of subsequent pay periods as the number of pay periods in which the overpayment occurred.

9.064 <u>Docking of Paychecks</u>

The docking of an employee's paycheck for absence from work for reasons not covered by the provisions of this Agreement or not authorized by the appropriate supervisor shall be made in the next paycheck at the employee's respective regular rate of pay only for the period of such absence.

9.07 Insurance

9.071 Health Insurance

HOSPITALIZATION AND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS

The medical hospitalization insurance provided by the Board to employees, as made available through the Consortium, will be the following two (2) coverage options, each offered on four (4) tier rates:

- The first option, PPO-2023, shall be a physician/hospital PPO plan with prescription drug coverage as described in the document denoted Appendix E and will require a 10% premium contribution to be made each month by payroll deduction for members utilizing this option.
- 2. The second option, HDHP-2023, is a qualified HDHP also described in Appendix E and will require a 0% premium contribution to be made each month by payroll deduction for employees selecting this option.
- 3. Included in the health insurance benefit set forth herein to eligible bargaining unit members is an Internal Revenue Service Section 125 Plan which will include an employee funded flexible spending account up to a maximum of \$2,500.00 annually. This Flexible Spending Account (FSA) will allow eligible bargaining unit members to use pre-tax dollars to pay non-reimbursed vision, medical, dental and/or prescription drug bills as well as to pay child or elder dependent care expenses (Dependent Care Account) which may be allowed up the \$5,000.00 funded by the employee under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Act of 1978. The Board shall pay all administrative costs of the Section 125 Plan. Election for this plan can be made only once per year.
- 4. Eligible bargaining unit members selecting HDHP-2023 may elect to have an employee funded Health Savings Account per applicable IRS regulations.

- 5. Prescription drug coverage is included with each plan and may not be chosen separately nor may the plan coverage be chosen without the accompanying drug coverage specified by the plan.
- 6. Spousal coverage under either alternative will be provided only upon proof that the spouse does not have other insurance coverage available to him/her through the spouse's employer which cost the spouse less than \$250.00 per month for single coverage. If such coverage is available, the eligible bargaining unit member's spouse must enroll in at least single coverage from his/her employer for the bargaining unit employee to be eligible for family coverage from the Board. Falsification of spousal coverage information shall be grounds for discipline, including discharge.
- 7. Eligible bargaining unit members who have a spouse who is employed and eligible for coverage with this District or another Consortium member District shall either each obtain a single coverage policy from their respective employer or may select family coverage from the employer of the spouse with the earliest birth date in the year (*i.e.*, the birthday rule). Neither spouse is eligible to received "opt-out" payments if both receive coverage through the Consortium.
- 8. Eligible bargaining unit members who chose to forego their right to coverage shall receive an "opt-out" benefit in the amount of twelve (12%) percent of the annual premium costs of the most expensive alternative for which they were eligible during the month of June of the school year of non-participation. Bargaining unit members who forego their right to coverage but are receiving health insurance coverage from the Trumbull County Schools Insurance Consortium as part of family coverage are not eligible for the "opt-out". Opt-out payments will be made at the end of the school year, no later than June 30.
- 9. An eligible bargaining unit member who has declined the available coverage under this contract who suffers a qualifying event (e.g., divorce, birth of a child, etc.) shall thereafter have the right to select and receive coverage from among the plan options then available for which they are eligible and in accord with the requirements of the insurer. Any "opt-out" payments shall be reduced proportionately to the time that coverage is thereafter extended; and, if an overpayment has occurred, the bargaining unit member shall remit such overpayment to the Treasurer within thirty (30) days of extension of coverage to him/her.

- 10. If the Consortium adopts health risk management programs as provided by and recommended by the insurance carrier, each bargaining unit member and their dependents must participate by completing questionnaires and/or participate in assessments. Although bargaining unit members would be encouraged, based upon their assessment/testing results to participate in health improvement programs and/or disease management programs as part of this health coverage package, they would not be required to do so.
- 11. A four (4) tier premium rating structure shall be in effect: single employee coverage, employee and spouse, employee and child(ren), and family coverage. Each bargaining unit member will submit the appropriate rating designation on or before November 1, each year. All employees will be required to provide (spouse and child) eligibility documentation as required by the Trumbull County School Insurance Consortium.

9.072 <u>DENTAL INSURANCE</u>

The Board shall provide to each full-time employee and his/her eligible dependents, without cost to the employee, dental insurance presently in effect in accordance with the terms of service and the schedule of benefits through the Consortium as long as the current dental plan is available. If the current dental plan becomes unavailable in the future, the Board and the Association will meet and negotiate in accordance with Section 2.09 of this Agreement.

9.073 Term Life Insurance

The Board shall provide without cost to each employee term life insurance in the amount equal to 2.5 times the employee's salary (as of December 31) to the nearest thousand up to \$90,000 based on insurability as determined by the Board's insurance carrier.

Those certificated employees hired after January 1, 1987 shall complete a separate application to determine insurability by the Board's insurance carrier to exceed \$50,000 in coverage.

All classified employees shall complete a separate application to determine insurability by the Board's insurance carrier to exceed \$50,000 in coverage.

In the event any employee is required to have a physical examination, said examination shall be at the employee's choice of physicians and without cost to the employee.

9.074 Vision

The Board shall self-insure and/or purchase the insurance coverage at the same or substantially the same level as the specifications set forth below for each employee, so choosing, now or hereinafter employed, and their eligible dependents.

Benefits

A. <u>Eye Examination</u>

One examination for each covered person within any 12 month period.

B. Lenses

One pair of lenses for each covered person within any 12 month period.

C. Frames

Benefits will be paid for one frame for each covered person in any 24 month period.

D. Contact Lenses

Will be covered in full when they are considered necessary under one of the following conditions:

- 1. Following cataract surgery
- To correct extreme visual acuity problems that cannot be corrected to at least 20/70 in either eye with spectacle lenses.
- Anisometropia

4. Keratoconus

When contact lenses are chosen for reasons other than the above, they are to be considered cosmetic in nature. Under these circumstances, an allowance of up to \$130.00 will be made in lieu of the covered person's receipt of all other benefits for that time period.

E. Deductible:

\$10.00/exam \$20.00 (lens, frames, materials)

9.075 Part-Time Employees

All certificated employees employed for four (4) instructional periods or more per day and all classified employees employed for five (5) hours or more per day may elect to receive fully paid health, dental, and vision single coverage as specified in Sections 9.071 and 9.073 of this Article.

9.076 <u>Insurance Booklets and Contracts</u>

Each employee shall be provided a summary plan booklet for each insurance program provided. The BASE President shall be provided, upon request, a complete copy of the contract and any amendments thereto between the Board (or the Trumbull County Schools health insurance consortium) and the carrier for each insurance program provided to employees.

9.08 Severance Pay

Employees may choose from either plan 9.081 and 9.082, but not both.

- 9.081 Each employee, upon retirement with ten (10) years in the State Teachers' Retirement system and/or in the State Employees' Retirement system, including ten (10) years of service as a district employee, shall qualify for severance pay in accordance with the following formula:
 - A. When a person retires under this contract, the employee shall be paid severance of one (1) day of pay at the employee's current daily rate for each three (3) days of accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 240 accumulated days for a severance pay of 80 days.

In addition, 15% of remaining accrued sick days shall be granted to the individual. Example: An employee has accumulated 320 total sick days, 320 - 240 = 80, 15% of 80 = 12 days. Employee is paid 80 + 12 for a total of 92 days of severance.

B. Severance pay shall be paid to the estate of the employee in the event of the employee's death.

- C. Severance shall be paid only once to qualifying employees retiring from Bristol Local Schools who have been employed for at least ten (10) years. Upon receipt of severance pay all remaining sick leave shall be extinguished.
- D. Payment may be made in two (2) equal installments at the option of the employee. The first check will be within 60-90 days of the effective date of retirement and the second check will be within the first payroll date in the following January.

9.082 Severance Pay

Each full-time certified/licensed employee upon retirement under STRS, including ten (10) years of service as a district employee, and qualifies for retirement benefits other than Disability Retirement benefits, and has reached age 50 shall receive 25% of his/her final salary rate provided:

The final annual salary rate shall be calculated without extended time or supplemental pay included. Service data shall be provided by each retiree with the calculation and determination of service years resting with the Board of Education. Qualified employees electing this retirement bonus shall only be entitled to receive their severance pay for unused sick leave calculated at five percent.

- A. Severance pay shall be paid to the estate of the employee in the event of the employee's death.
- B. Severance shall be paid only once to qualifying employees retiring from Bristol Local Schools who have been employed for at least ten (10) years. Upon receipt of severance pay all remaining sick leave shall be extinguished.
- C. Payment may be made in two (2) equal installments at the option of the employee. The first check will be within 60-90 days of the effective date of retirement and the second check will be within the first payroll date in the following January.

Each classified employee upon retirement with ten (10) years in the SERS system, who has been employed by the district for at least ten (10) years and qualifies for retirement benefits other than Disability Retirement benefits, shall receive a payment of 25% of his/her final salary rate provided:

The final annual salary rate shall be calculated without extended time or supplemental pay included. Service data shall be provided by each

retiree with the calculation and determination of service years resting with the Board of Education. Qualified employees electing this retirement bonus shall only be entitled to receive their severance pay for unused sick leave calculated at five percent.

- A. Severance pay shall be paid to the estate of the employee in the event of the employee's death.
- B. Severance shall be paid only once to qualifying employees retiring from Bristol Local Schools who have been employed for at least ten (10) years. Upon receipt of severance pay all remaining sick leave shall be extinguished.
- C. Payment may be made in two (2) equal installments at the option of the employee. The first check will be within 60-90 days of the effective date of retirement and the second check will be within the first payroll date in the following January.

9.083 Employment of Retired Teachers

Any bargaining unit member who retires under STRS and is subsequently re-employed as an active bargaining unit member and teacher in the district shall be placed at the 5th step of the indexed salary schedule of this Agreement subject to and according to degree.

Any such retired teacher shall receive no more than a one (1) year limited contract automatically non-renewed at the end of each school year at the specified step and shall not accrue experience time to move from that step unless subsequently re-employed by the district. The retired teacher may be subsequently consecutively re-employed for no more than five (5) years and shall not exceed step ten (10) on the indexed salary schedule. Any position filled by a retired teacher shall be posted at the end of each school year.

This Section (9.083) shall supersede Sections 3319.11, 3319.111 and 3317.13 of the Ohio Revised Code.

While employed by the district subsequent to retirement, such member who is interested in obtaining health care benefits must opt for the health care benefits offered by STRS. Such retired member is not eligible for the insurance opt-out provision of this Agreement. However, such retired teacher may purchase Board insurance at the group rate.

A retired member is ineligible upon leaving the Bristol Local School district to receive a severance payment. This provision of the

agreement and such salary and contract will not be grievable under the grievance procedures of this agreement nor through any claim or action filed before the State Employees Relations Board (SERB) or any court of law.

When a vacancy exists, as defined by Section 6.04 of the Agreement, and no current bargaining unit member applies, priority should be given to new applicants over retired bargaining unit members.

9.09 Admission to School Events

An employee, in accordance with procedures announced by the Superintendent, shall be admitted, without cost to any home, Board-sponsored athletic or extracurricular event for which admission is charged.

9.10 Wage Garnishment

The wages of an employee shall not be garnished except by court order or in accord with an order issued under the American Student Assistance Law, 20 U.S.C. Section 1095A, et seq. The sole fact of garnisheeing shall result in no action by the Board against the employee. Such garnisheeing shall not begin without written notice to the employee at least fourteen (14) days in advance, if permitted by the court order or the above noted Federal law.

9.11 Faculty as Substitutes; Pay Rate and Pay Dates

An employee who is required to relinquish their planning time to substitute for another employee, shall be paid at the hourly rate based on a per diem of the BA, step 0 base amount or a flat rate of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) per hour, whichever is greater. Further, when an employee is requested to assume the responsibilities of teaching a class or, except in a study hall, to otherwise accept the students of another employee when a substitute employee is not obtained, the employee shall be compensated at that same hourly rate. The same employee shall not be requested to accept such responsibility until all employees available at that time have done so. Such assignment shall be on a rotating basis.

9.12 Home Instruction, Evening School and Summer School

Employees for home instruction, evening school, and summer school shall be compensated at the hourly rate based on a per diem of the BA, step 0 base amount per hour worked or a flat rate of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) per hour, whichever is greater, for all time scheduled.

9.13 Extended Time

9.131 Extended Work Year

Certificated employees assigned to the positions listed below shall be employed for a work year extended by the number of workdays shown:

- A. Librarians Ten (10) workdays
- B. High School Guidance Counselor Fifteen (15) workdays
- C. Elementary & Middle School Guidance Counselors Ten (10) workdays
- D. Special Education employees required to do IEPs three (3) workdays maximum either during or after the school year (at employee's option).
- 9.132 Classified employees may have their work year extended at the discretion of the Superintendent.

9.14 Medical Provider Alternative

Any proposal received by the Board for consideration of a health maintenance organization or similar medical provider alternative shall result in notice thereof to BASE and BASE involvement and agreement as may be required by federal and state statute and regulation.

9.15 Professional Development Reimbursement

- 9.151 A bargaining unit member who enrolls in a course or workshop related to his/her employment, or to another position in the bargaining unit, through an accredited college, university or CEU provider shall receive tuition, books/materials, and/or mileage expenses reimbursement from the Board upon successful completion of such work to a maximum of one thousand four hundred dollars (\$1,400.00) per year per person and a maximum of nineteen thousand dollars (\$19,000.00) for all staff per year. College/University courses taken by certified personnel must be graduate level courses to be eligible for reimbursement unless the course is necessary for renewal of a current certification utilized by the employee (prior approval of non-graduate courses by Superintendent is required).
- 9.152 Successful completion of work shall be defined as a "C" or above or a pass in a pass/fail course or attendance in a workshop.

Wed, 01/29/2025 03:07:15 PM SERB

- 9.153 For certificated employees, only accredited professional development necessary for certification/licensure (renewal or upgrade) or leading to an advanced degree is approved. The certificated who do not need professional development necessary for certification/licensure may take accredited professional development related to their teaching area-upon prior approval of the Superintendent.
- 9.154 For classified staff, the class or workshop must be for renewal of license or related to the job and must be approved by the superintendent in advance by submitting a request form to be provided.
- 9.155 All staff must have coursework approved by the Superintendent on the professional development form before starting the courses.
- 9.156 Reimbursement will only be given after documentation of payment and successful completion of the class are given to the Treasurer's office. Acceptable payment documentation sufficient to justify reimbursement shall include a receipt for a specified amount from an accredited college, university or CEU provider reflecting that payment has been made either by the Association member directly or by way of a loan.

9.16 College Credit Plus (CCP) Instruction

The opportunity to teach any course offered at the school district through College Credit Plus (CCP) shall be offered to a member who is qualified to teach the course. Teaching a CCP course shall be voluntary on the part of the teacher. Any CCP teacher shall be afforded one in-service day to visit the participating institution of higher education to engage in planning with the cooperating college instructor. (Additional in-service days may be approved by the Superintendent.) Any teacher who teaches a course(s) shall be paid a stipend of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) per course per semester. The stipend shall be paid as part of the member's regular pay at the conclusion of the course(s).

ARTICLE X. RETIREMENT

10.01 STRS/SERS Pick-Up

10.011 In addition to the required employer contribution to State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) or State Employees Retirement System (SERS), the Board will as a condition of employment continue to contribute an amount equal to each employee's contribution in lieu of payment to such employee. Such amount contributed by the Board to STRS/SERS on behalf of the employee shall be treated as a mandatory salary reduction otherwise payable to the employee.

Wed, 01/29/2025 03:07:15 PM SERB

- 10.012 An addendum to each employee's contract or salary notice will be prepared which states that the employee's contract salary is being restated as consisting of (a) a cash salary component and (b) a pick-up component, which is equal to the amount of the employee contributions being "picked up" by the Board.
- 10.013 W-2 information at the end of the calendar year will show employee's contract salary less the amount "picked up" by the Board for all taxing purposes.

ARTICLE XI. REDUCTION IN FORCE

11.01 Reasons

Reasons for implementing reduction in force shall include:

- 11.011 Decreased enrollment of pupils.
- 11.012 Return to duty of regular employee after leave of absence.
- 11.013 Suspension of schools or territorial changes affecting the district.
- 11.014 Loss of state and/or federal funds dedicated to a program resulting in loss of such position.
- 11.015 Manifest evidence of lack of work sufficient to justify the reduction of classified employees.
- 11.016 Financial Reasons

11.02 Notice to BASE

Before any reduction in force may occur, the BASE President shall be notified in writing by the Superintendent of the intended layoff, the reason for the layoff, the names of all positions to be eliminated and all employees to be laid off, and the effective date of the layoff. Each employee to be recommended for layoff shall receive similar notice, including the reason for and the effective date of the layoff. Such notices shall be provided no later than ten (10) workdays before the Board meeting at which the Superintendent will recommend a reduction in force. BASE shall be allowed to address the Board, at the option of BASE, either in public or closed session, before action may occur on the Superintendent's recommendation of a reduction in force.

11.03 Attrition

The number of employees affected by a reduction in force will be kept to a minimum by not employing replacements for employees who retire or resign whenever possible, or whose contracts are not renewed. Limited contract employees will not be non-renewed for reduction in force purposes.

11.04 Effective Date of Layoff

A layoff may not become effective earlier than forty-five (45) days after the Board has approved the Superintendent's recommendation for a reduction in force.

11.05 Layoff

11.051 Classified Employees

The classified employee having the longest seniority in a job classification shall be the last to be laid off. Employees with the least seniority in the positions eliminated shall have their contracts suspended. Employees without a continuing contract shall be laid off first, within a classification. Additional reductions shall begin with the least senior employee in any classification continuing in order of seniority until the reduction is completed.

11.052 Certificated Employees

Retention of bargaining unit members and recall of eligible teachers whose contracts have been suspended pursuant to a reduction in force will not be based upon seniority, except in circumstances when choosing between teachers with comparable evaluations, per ORC §3319.17.

The application of the term "comparable", as applied to teacher evaluations, shall be in accordance with the Standards Based Teacher Evaluation System which has been mutually developed by the parties and reviewed by the Evaluation Review Committee.

If a certificated employee (not rated "ineffective") is the lowest in seniority in a certificated area that is to be reduced, but that employee has greater seniority in another area of certification, that employee shall be assigned to the other area of certification and an employee with less seniority shall be suspended.

Limited contract teachers shall be the first reduced in the affected teaching field (certification/licensure) utilizing the following order:

- A. Comparable teacher evaluation rating.
- B. Seniority, when evaluations are comparable.

Should the necessary reduction of staff required exceed the number of limited contract teachers in the affected field, continuing contract teachers will be reduced in the affected teaching fields (certification/licensure) utilizing the following order:

- A. Comparable teacher evaluation rating.
- B. Seniority, when evaluations are comparable.

11.06 Recall

11.061 <u>Classified Employees</u>

Any vacancy in a position shall be filled by the senior qualified employee on lay-off status after the provisions of Section 6.05 and its sub-sections have been implemented. Notice of recall shall be sent via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last recorded address of the employee. Such employee shall notify the Superintendent within five (5) workdays of receipt of the notice of recall of their intention to accept or reject re-employment. A laid-off employee accepting such re-employment may not be required to begin work earlier than ten (10) workdays from the date of such acceptance. Neither acceptance nor rejection of an offer of employment in a lesser position than the employee held at the time of layoff shall operate to remove the employee from the reduction in force list. Employees shall remain on the recall list for a period of two (2) years from the last day of active employment with the District, unless the employee refuses to accept an offer of recall to a comparable position.

11.062 <u>Certificated Employees</u>

Any vacancy in a bargaining unit position shall be filled not based upon seniority, except in circumstances when choosing between teachers with comparable teacher evaluation ratings, per ORC §3319.17. Notice of recall shall be sent via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last recorded address of the employee. Such employee shall notify the Superintendent within five (5) workdays of receipt of the notice of recall of their intention to accept or reject re-employment. A laid-off employee accepting such re-employment may not be required to begin work earlier than ten (10) workdays from the date of such Neither acceptance nor rejection of an offer of acceptance. employment in a lesser position than the employee held at the time of layoff shall operate to remove the employee from the reduction in force list. Employees shall remain on the recall list for a period of two (2) years from the last day of active employment with the District, unless the employee refuses to accept an offer of recall to a comparable position.

11.07 Transfers When RIF Exists

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article VI regarding transfer, an employee on the reduction in force list shall be offered re-employment to a vacant position before an active senior employee may be transferred to such position if the transfer would deny re-employment to the employee on the reduction in force list.

11.08 Fringe Benefits During Layoff

The employee may continue any such insurance programs except life insurance, at the employee's own expense by paying the premium as prescribed by COBRA.

11.09 Substituting During Layoff

An employee on layoff status or an employee who has had their hours reduced shall be given preference by seniority to substitute for an absent employee, but such substitute service or the refusal thereof shall not be construed by the Board to deny eligibility for unemployment compensation for such employee. On a daily basis, provision shall not apply if it causes a disruption of service in regular position.

11.10 <u>Unemployment Compensation</u>

The Board shall take no action that would cause the denial of unemployment compensation to an eligible employee and shall take any action necessary to qualify the laid-off employee for unemployment compensation.

11.11 Continuing Contract Precedence

A continuing contract has precedence over a limited contract with all other factors being equal among the employees involved.

11.12 Classified Employees

The reduction in force sections contained in Article XI of this Agreement shall apply to classified employees.

ARTICLE XII. DISTRICT CONSOLIDATION, JURISDICTIONAL CHANGES, AND MERGERS

In the event of any anticipated change, consolidation or merger, BASE shall be notified as soon as possible and meetings will be held between the Superintendent and BASE

to discuss the situation. The purpose of the meetings shall be to provide BASE input and advance notification of any merger, jurisdictional change, or consolidation.

12.01 If bargaining unit members covered by this Contract are transferred to another or new school district during the term of this Contract, the Employer agrees that prior to any such transfer, it will make a reasonable effort to encourage that this Contract and any collateral agreements that are construed to be a part of this Contract, and all of the obligations and responsibilities under this Contract, are assumed in their entirety by the successor employer.

The employer agrees that it will make a reasonable effort to encourage the successor employer to do the following:

- 12.011 If the successor employer already recognizes a Union which is an affiliate of the Ohio Education Association, then the transferred employees shall be considered to be added to the existing bargaining unit.
- 12.012 If the successor employer recognizes a Union which is not an affiliate of the Ohio Education Association, the successor employer will refer the matter of representation to the State Employment Relations Board.
- 12.013 If the successor employer does not recognize a Union, such successor employer shall voluntarily agree to recognize the Union affiliated with the Ohio Education Association upon receipt of a "Request for Voluntary Recognition."

12.014 Seniority:

- A If the successor employer does not recognize a Union, the seniority provision of the Contract shall govern the credited seniority of all employees employed by the successor employer as if they had been bargaining unit members; or
- B. If the successor employer recognizes Unions affiliated with the Ohio Education Association and notwithstanding any other contractual seniority provision, seniority shall be defined as the length of continuous employment in a bargaining unit position beginning with the date of hire in such position as determined by Board action.
- 12.02 If any question arises as to whether the receiving district can honor the previous district's contract, the Association has the right to seek Mandamus action through the courts to make a determination. The Board shall not intervene on behalf of a successor in any such action.

- 12.03 If employees are transferred into the Bristol Local School District and were bargaining unit members of a Union not affiliated with the Ohio Education Association, to the extent permissible by law, such transferred employees will be (1) considered to be added to the appropriate existing bargaining unit and (2) covered by the provisions of the appropriate existing Contract in place between this Union and this employer.
- 12.04 BASE acknowledges and agrees that this Article is an agreement between BASE and the Bristol Board of Education and that the individual members of the Bristol Board of Education, its Superintendent, agents and other employees shall not incur any individual or personal liability to BASE, its affiliates or its members for any action or inaction taken related to this article.

ARTICLE XIII. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as expressly limited by this Agreement, nothing herein impairs the right and responsibility of the Board to:

- 13.01 Determine matters of inherent managerial policy which include, but are not limited to areas of discretion or policy such as the functions and programs of the Board, standards of services, its overall budget, utilization of technology, and organizational structure;
- 13.02 Direct, supervise, evaluate, or hire employees;
- 13.03 Maintain and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of school district operations;
- 13.04 Determine the overall methods, process, means, or personnel by which school district operations are to be conducted;
- 13.05 Suspend, discipline, demote, or discharge for just cause, or lay off, transfer, assign, schedule, promote, or retain employees.
- 13.06 Determine the adequacy of the work force;
- 13.07 Determine the overall mission of the Board as a unit of government.
- 13.08 Effectively manage the work force;
- 13.09 Take actions to carry out the mission of the Board as a governmental unit.

ARTICLE XIV. EFFECTS AND DURATION OF AGREEMENT

14.01 <u>Severability</u>

Should any provision of this Agreement be declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be modified by mutual agreement of

the parties to the extent that it violates the law, but the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement if not affected by the deleted provision. Any provision found contrary to law shall be bargained with the Association. If agreement cannot be reached within 30 workdays, such issue shall be negotiated pursuant to Article II of the agreement and shall be under ORC 4117.14 to reach settlement.

14.02 <u>Authority of Agreement</u>

This Agreement shall supersede any policies, rules, regulations or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.

14.03 Individual Contracts

- A. If an individual contract between the Board and an employee contains any provision inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement, during its duration, shall be controlling.
- B. 1. The parties agree that all newly hired regular non-teaching school employees hired after July 1, 2013, including regular hourly rate and per diem employees, shall enter into written contracts for their employment which shall be for a period of not more than one (1) year. If such employees are renewed, their subsequent contract shall be for an additional one (1) year period.
 - 2. After the first two (2) years of employment, if such employees are renewed, their subsequent contract shall be for a period of two (2) years. After the end of any two (2) year contract, if the contract of a non-teaching employee is renewed, the employee shall be continued in employment.
 - 3. The salary provided in the contract may be increased but not reduced unless such reduction is a part of a uniform plan affecting the non-teaching employees of the entire District.
 - 4. Non-teaching employees shall receive a one (1) year contract, and if renewed, they will receive a one (1) year contract, a two (2) year contract, and then a continuing contract.
 - 5. The contracts of a non-teaching employee can be non-renewed in accordance with Ohio law and also terminated in accordance with Ohio law.
 - 6. This section (14.03, B.) shall supersede and control over the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.081.

14.04 Printing and Distribution

Copies of this Agreement, titled "Agreement Between the Bristol Association of School Employees and the Bristol Local Board of Education," after being signed by both the Board and BASE representatives and after approval by the Superintendent of a proof copy prepared by BASE, shall be printed in 4" x 7" or 5-1/2" x 8-1/2" booklets at the expense of the Board. Sufficient copies of the printed Agreement shall be provided to BASE for distribution to bargaining unit employees now employed or hereafter employed by the Board. Further, the BASE shall be provided for its use thirty (30) copies of the printed Agreement.

14.05 **Duration**

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2024, until 11:59 p.m. June 30, 2027.

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on _ the representatives whose signatures ap	guly 30 , 2024, as attested to by pear below.
FOR BASE	FOR THE BOARD
Vonnie Peterson, President	Scott Chapman, President
Jill Church, Vice-President	Kristina Stephens, Vice-President
Timothy Nowery, Secretary	Jared Bilas, Board Member
ling Buy	Brooker
Craig Giesy, Negotiator	Brooke Vondrasek, Board Member
Deborah Rowles, Negotiator	Don Mickel, Board Member
Sheil Q. Sord	Charles All
Sheila A. Saad OEA Labor Relations Consultant	Christopher Dray, Superintendent
OLA Labor Relations Consultant	(Val /L
	Carla L. Click, Treasurer

GRIEVANCE NO.	

APPENDIX A

BRISTOL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL EMPLOYEES and BRISTOL LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

GRIEVANCE FORM

NAM	E OF GRIEVANT:	
SCHO	OOL:	
ASSI	GNMENT:	
DATE	CAUSE OF GRIEVANCI	E OCCURRED:
DATE	STEP I DISCUSSION O	CCURRED:
A.		ANCE, INCLUDING THE ARTICLE/SECTION(S) PRETED, OR MISAPPLIED:
В.	RELIEF SOUGHT:	
	\$	Signature of BASE Representative
	Ī	Date

APPENDIX B-1

2.00% INCREASE 2024-2025 CLASSIFIED

2024-2025 Classif	ied							
Schedule								
Classified Increases		2%						
			W/Boiler					
			License or					
<u>Custodians</u>		18.31	CDL		Sweepers/C			13.77
Step	Index	Hr Rate	Hr Rate		Index	Hr Rate)	
0	1.000	18.31	18.62		1.000		13.77	
1	1.057	19.35	19.65		1.057		14.55	
2	1.089	19.94	20.24		1.089		15.00	
3	1.099	20.12	20.42		1.099		15.13	
4	1.109	20.30	20.60		1.109		15.27	
					.			
Cooredorios/Correr Tr	aala Alala	47.40			Bus Drivers	(5 hour	<u>work</u>	40.04
Secretaries/Comp. Te		17.42			day)	برمامير		19.91
Step	Index	Hr Rate			Step	Index	4 000	Hr Rate
0	1.000	17.42			0		1.000	19.91
1	1.093	19.04			1		1.036	20.63
2	1.167	20.33			2		1.076	21.42
3	1.177	20.51			3		1.086	21.62
4	1.187	20.68		•	4		1.096	21.82
Cooks/Cashiers/Café	Workers	14.74			Educational	Accieta	nt	12.83
Step	Index	Hr Rate			Step	Index	<u></u>	Hr Rate
0	1.000	14.74			0 0	IIIUUX	1.000	12.83
1	1.056	15.56			1		1.060	13.60
2	1.148	16.92			2		1.120	14.37
3	1.158	17.07			3		1.130	14.50
4	1.168	17.22			4		1.140	14.63
'	1.100	17.22					1.110	1 1.00
Head Cook								
		14.74						
Step	Index	Hr Rate						
0	1.000	14.84						
1	1.056	15.66						
2	1.148	17.02						
3	1.158	17.17						
4	1.168	17.17						
1 .		17.02						I

APPENDIX B-2

2.00% INCREASE 2025-2026

CLASSIFIED

2025-2026 Classified S	Schedule						
Classified Increases		2%					
			W/Boiler				
Custodiana		40.00	License or		Cura mara/Cl		44.05
<u>Custodians</u>		18.68	CDL		Sweepers/CI		14.05
Step	Index	Hr Rate	Hr Rate	•	Index	Hr Rate	
0	1.000	18.68	18.96	0	1.000	14.05	
1	1.057	19.74	20.04	1	1.057	14.85	
2	1.089	20.34	20.64	2	1.089	15.30	
3	1.099	20.52	20.82	3	1.099	15.44	
4	1.109	20.71	21.01	4	1.109	15.58	
					Rue Drivore	(5 hour work	
Secretaries/Comp. To	ech Aide	17.77			day)	(5 Hour Work	20.31
Step	Index	Hr Rate			Step	Index	Hr Rate
0	1.000	17.77			0	1.000	20.31
1	1.093	19.42			1	1.036	21.04
2	1.167	20.74			2	1.076	21.86
3	1.177	20.92			3	1.086	22.06
4	1.187	21.09			4	1.096	22.26
		45.00					40.00
Cooks/Cashiers/Café		15.03			Educational Assistant		13.09
Step	Index	Hr Rate			Step	Index	Hr Rate
0	1.000	15.03			0	1.000	13.09
1	1.056	15.88			1	1.060	13.87
2	1.148	17.26			2	1.120	14.66
3	1.158	17.41			3	1.130	14.79
4	1.168	17.56			4	1.140	14.92
Head Cook							
_		15.03					
Step	Index	Hr Rate					
0	1.000	15.13					
1	1.056	15.97					
2	1.148	17.36					
3	1.158	17.51					
4	1.168	17.66					

APPENDIX B-3

<u>2.00% INCREASE 2026-2027</u> <u>CLASSIFIED</u>

2026-2027 Classified S	Schedule						
Classified Increases		2%	W/Boiler License or				
Custodians		19.05	CDL		Sweepers/Cle	eaner	
Step	Index	Hr Rate	Hr Rate		Index	Hr Rate	14.33
0	1.000	19.05	19.33	0	1.000	14.33	}
1	1.057	20.13	20.43	1	1.057	15.14	
2	1.089	20.74	21.04	2	1.089	15.60	
3	1.099	20.93	21.23	3	1.099	15.74	
4	1.109	21.12	21.42	4	1.109	15.89)
					Bus Drivers (5 hour work	
Secretaries/Comp. Te		18.13			<u>day)</u>		20.71
Step	Index	Hr Rate			Step	Index	Hr Rate
0	1.000	18.13			0	1.000	
1	1.093	19.81			1	1.036	
2	1.167	21.15			2	1.076	22.29
3	1.177	21.33			3	1.086	22.50
4	1.187	21.51			4	1.096	22.70
Cooks/Cashiers/Café	Workers	15.33			Educational A	<u>Assistant</u>	13.35
Step	Index	Hr Rate			Step	Index	Hr Rate
0	1.000	15.33			0	1.000	13.35
1	1.056	16.19			1	1.060	14.15
2	1.148	17.60			2	1.120	14.95
3	1.158	17.76			3	1.130	15.09
4	1.168	17.91			4	1.140	15.22
Head Cook							
_		15.33					
Step	Index	Hr Rate					
0	1.000	15.43					
1	1.056	16.29					
2	1.148	17.70					
3	1.158	17.86					
4	1.168	18.01					

Wed, 01/29/2025 03:07:15 PM SERB

APPENDIX C-1

2024-2025 -	2.50%				
BOARD IN	_,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Base	KID	37642	36724
STEP	BA	BA +18	MA	37012	MA +18
0	37642	39524	41595		43853
	1.000	1.050	41393	1.105	1.165
1	39524	41595	43853	1.100	46112
'	1.050	1.105	43033	1.165	1.225
2	41406	43665	46112	1.100	48370
	1.100	1.160	40112	1.225	1.285
3	43288	45735	48370	11220	50629
	1.150	1.215	10070	1.285	1.345
4	45171	47805	50629		52887
	1.200	1.270		1.345	1.405
5	47053	49876	52887		55146
	1.250	1.325		1.405	1.465
6	48935	51946	55146		57404
	1.300	1.380		1.465	1.525
7	50817	54016	57404		59663
	1.350	1.435		1.525	1.585
8	52699	56087	59663		61921
	1.400	1.490		1.585	1.645
9	54581	58157	61921		64180
	1.450	1.545		1.645	1.705
10	56463	60227	64180		66438
	1.500	1.600		1.705	1.765
11	58345	62298	66438		68697
	1.550	1.655		1.765	1.825
12	60227	64368	68697		70955
	1.600	1.710		1.825	1.885
13	62109	66438	70955		73214
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945
14	62109	66438	70955		73214
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945
15	62109	66438	70955		73214
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945
16	62109	66438	70955		73214
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945
17	62109	66438	70955		73214
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945
18	63609	67938	72455		74714
	1500	1500		1500	1500
23	65109	69438	73955		76214
<u> </u>	1500	1500		1500	1500
27	67209	71538	76055		78314
	2100	2100		2100	2100

APPENDIX C-2

2025-2026 - 2	2025-2026 - 2.50 INCREASE SALARY GRID						
BOARD INI		Base		38583	37642		
STEP	BA	BA +18	MA		MA +18		
0	38583	40512	42634		44949		
	1.000	1.050		1.105	1.165		
1	40512	42634	44949		47264		
	1.050	1.105		1.165	1.225		
2	42441	44756	47264		49579		
	1.100	1.160		1.225	1.285		
3	44371	46879	49579		51894		
	1.150	1.215		1.285	1.345		
4	46300	49001	51894		54209		
	1.200	1.270		1.345	1.405		
5	48229	51123	54209		56524		
	1.250	1.325		1.405	1.465		
6	50158	53245	56524		58839		
	1.300	1.380		1.465	1.525		
7	52087	55367	58839		61154		
	1.350	1.435		1.525	1.585		
8	54016	57489	61154		63469		
	1.400	1.490		1.585	1.645		
9	55946	59611	63469		65784		
	1.450	1.545	30.00	1.645	1.705		
10	57875	61733	65784		68099		
	1.500	1.600	33.31	1.705	1.765		
11	59804	63855	68099	111 00	70414		
	1.550	1.655	00000	1.765	1.825		
12	61733	65977	70414	1.705	72729		
	1.600	1.710		1.825	1.885		
13	63662	68099	72729		75044		
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945		
14	63662	68099	72729	4 005	75044		
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945		
15	63662	68099	72729		75044		
16	1.650	1.765	72720	1.885	1.945		
16	63662	68099	72729	4 005	75044		
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945		
17	63662	68099	72729	4 005	75044		
	1.650	1.765		1.885	1.945		
18	65162	69599	74229		76544		
	1500	1500		1500	1500		
23	66662	71099	75729		78044		
	1500	1500		1500	1500		
27	68762	73199	77829		80144		
	2100	2100		2100	2100		

Wed, 01/29/2025 03:07:15 PM SERB

APPENDIX C-3

2026-2027 - 2.50 INCREASE SALARY GRID 2.50%								
BOARD INDEX			205.49	38583				
		Base	39548					
STEP	BA	BA +18	MA 40700	MA +18				
0	39548	41525	43700	46073				
	1.000	1.050	1.105	1.165				
1	41525	43700	46073	48446				
	1.050	1.105	1.165	1.225				
2	43503	45875	48446	50819				
-	1.100	1.160	1.225	1.285				
3	45480	48050	50819	53192				
4	1.150	1.215	1.285	1.345				
4	47457	50226	53192	55565				
	1.200	1.270	1.345	1.405				
5	49435	52401	55565	57937				
	1.250	1.325	1.405	1.465				
6	51412	54576	57937	60310				
7	1.300	1.380	1.465	1.525 62683				
'	53389	56751	60310					
0	1.350	1.435	1.525	1.585				
8	55367	58926	62683	65056				
9	1.400 57344	1.490 61101	1.585 65056	1.645				
9	1.450		1.645	67429 1.705				
10	59322	1.545 63276	67429	69802				
	1.500	1.600	1.705	1.765				
11	61299	65451	69802	72175				
	1.550	1.655	1.765	1.825				
12	63276	67627	72175	74547				
12	1.600		1.825	1.885				
13		1.710 69802	74547					
13	65254 1.650	1.765	1.885	76920 1.945				
14	65254	69802	74547	76920				
14	1.650	1.765	1.885	1.945				
15	65254	69802	74547	76920				
	1.650	1.765	1.885	1.945				
16	65254	69802	74547	76920				
10	1.650	1.765	1.885	1.945				
17	65254	69802	74547	76920				
,,,	1.650	1.765	1.885	1.945				
18	66754	71302	76047	78420				
	1500	1500	1500	1500				
23	68254	72802	77547	79920				
	1500	1500	1500	1500				
27	70354	74902	79647	82020				
	2100	2100	2100	2100				
	2.00	2.00	2.00	2100				

SUPPLEMENTAL PAY SCHEDULE - APPENDIX D

POSITION	INDEX RATE
Athletic Director	.27
Assistant Athletic Director	.08
Head Basketball	.23
JV Basketball	.12
Assistant Basketball	.10
Ass't. Basketball Elementary (2)	.01
Head Track (2)	.10
Assistant	.05
Junior High Track	.07
Baseball	.10
Assistant	.05
Softball	.10
Assistant	.05
Boys Soccer	.10
Assistant	.05
Girls Soccer	.10
Assistant	.05
Volleyball	.10
JV Volleyball Coach	.08
Jr. Hi. Volleyball	.07
Cross Country	.10
Assistant	.05
Jr. High Cross Country	.07
Golf - Boys	.08
Golf - Girls	.08
Chemical Awareness Academic Challenge (Prep Bowl) Advisor Cheerleader Advisor Assistant Cheerleader Advisor Art Club Advisor Yearbook Musical Director Beta Club Pep Band Band Director Junior Class Advisor Senior Class Advisor A. V. Director Play Director Washington Field Trip (8th Grade Teacher's Stipend) Shift Coordinator National Honor Society English Festival (2) H.S. & J.H. Power of the Pen (1) 7th & 8th Bus In-Service Trainer Vocal Music Director 7-12 Vocal Music Director K-6 Student Council Advisor 9th Grade Class Advisor Saturday School Supervisor Detention Supervisor	.07 .05/Team .06 .06 .06 .014 .07 .05 .05 .04 .04 .04 .12 .05 .04 .04 .014 .046 .014 .03 each .03 12.90 /new hire/hr05 .04 .04 .01 .05 .04 .01 .05 .04 .01 .05 .04 .05 .04 .01 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .05 .04 .07 .08 .09 .09 .09 .09 .09 .09 .09 .09 .09 .09
·	75

Wed, 01/29/2025 03:07:15 PM SERB

Morning Detention Supervisor	Either Compensatory Time or Same Rate as Evening Supervisor
Parking Lot Coordinator (1)	.014
AM Supervision (1)	.042
Science Fair Coordinator	.04
Foreign Language Club Advisor (2)	.014 each
*Web Site Coordinator	.05
*Position shall be eliminated should a computer aide position	be filled.
24 Team Advisor	.014
Science Club Advisor	.014
D.C. Coordinator	.05
Tech Club Advisor	.014
PBIS Coordinator (District)	.03
Drone Club Advisor	.03
Elementary Student Council	.03

Other Supplemental Positions may be added at the discretion of the Superintendent.

The Superintendent reserves the right to fill or not fill any supplemental positions (athletics or non-athletic) based on participation levels.

APPENDIX E Board Approved Plan Options



Trumbull County Schools Insurance Consortium

Future Funding Rate Options	Board Approved Plan Options fully implemented January 1, 2023	
	2020 PPO (Migration from current Plans 1 & 2)	Qualified HDHP (Current Plan 4 with migration from Plan 3)
MEDICAL TYPE OF PLAN:	PHYSICIAN/ HOSPITAL PPO	Qualified HDHP
IND/FAM DEDUCTIBLE:	IN: \$450 / \$900 OUT: \$900 / \$1,800	IN: \$1,500 / \$3,000 OUT: \$3,000 / \$6,000
IND/FAM COINSURANCE:	IN: 15% OUT: 35%	IN: 20% OUT: 40%
IND/FAM OUT OF POCKET: (INCL. DEDUCTIBLE)	IN: \$2,500 / \$5,000 OUT: \$5,000 / \$10,000	IN: \$3,000 / \$6,000 OUT: \$6,000 / \$12,000
PREVENTIVE SERVICES	Covered in Full	Covered in Full
PHYSICIAN OFFICE SERVICES (PCP)	\$20 Copay	20% after Deductible
PHYSICIAN OFFICE SERVICES (SCP)	\$20 Copay	20% after Deductible
EMERGENCY ROOM	\$250 Copay, then 15%	20% after Deductible
OUTPATIENT DIAGNOSTIC, X-RAY, LAB	15% after Deductible	20% after Deductible
OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES	15% after Deductible	20% after Deductible
INPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES	15% after Deductible	20% after Deductible
PHARMACY:	\$5/20/35, \$10/40/70 MO	Deductible & Coinsurance
Employer HRA/HSA Contributions:	NA	NA